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Strategic Report
Year Ended 30 June 2015

The Directors present therr strategic report for the year ended 30 June 2015

Review of the business

The Group's pnncipal actvities duning the year)s the provision of legal services in both the Personal Injury (‘PI') and
General Law fields, with the acquisition of the Professional Services Division of Quindell expanding in the Personal Injury
area as well as the provision of other ancillary services

The key financial and other performance indicators performance during the year was as follows

2014

2015 Unaudited Change

£'000 £'000 %
Fee & service revenue 153,786 101,717 512
(Loss)/Profit before tax (245,820) 20,369 -1,306
Goodwill impairment 269,062 -
Profit before goodwill impairment and tax 23,242 20,369 141
Equity shareholders’ funds 219,848 23,054 8536

Ratio Ratio %
Current assets as % of current habihbes (‘quick ratio’) 134 084 595

Fee & service revenue for the year increased by 51 2% parbally due to the acquisition of the Professional Services
Dmision of Quindell {rebranded Slater & Gordon Solutions), accounting for £19 7m of the growth with a further £15 6m
from the increases in WIP The remaining increase 1s attributable to the acquisitions of Walker Smith Way and Leo
Abse Cohen (£3 3m) and general increases in fees across both Pl and General Law

The improvement in profit before goodwill impairment and tax year-on-year 1s directly attnbuted to the additional
revenues brought in by Leo Abse Cohen and Walker Smith Way, more than covenng the additional spend in vanous
areas of the business However this was partally offset by the pre-tax losses incurred in the Slater & Gordon Solutions

business

Associated with the finalisation of the Global Group's accounts for the penod ending 31 December 2015, the group
recently undertock a review of the goodwill held at year end and ascertained that the goodwill ansing on acquisition of
the $GS businesses required imparment to the value of £269m at year end, attnbutable to latest forecasts indicating

reduced profitability

Dunng the year, the Group has reassessed its accounting treatment of deferred consideration payable in the context of
its acquisition of legal service practices This reassessment has taken into account an analysis of histoncal acquisiions
in the United Kingdom where cash and share-based consideration payable to the vendor pnncipals of businesses
acquired by the Group 1s defered  Refer to Business Combinations Note 28

Histoncally, all cash payments and share 1ssues to vendors, whether restrained, deferred, contingent or otherwise, have
been treated as consideration for the relevant business acquisition

The Group has now carefully considered the appropnate treatment of these payments by reference to IFRS 3(r)
Business Combinations wath regard to the treatment of specific components of deferred consideratian IFRS 3(r) requires
that transactions remunerating employees or former owners of the acquired business for future services be treated as
separate transactions that are not to be included in the acquisition accounting

An assessment has been made in relation to those arrangements that include contingent consideration to vendors of the
business that are subject to so-called “bad leaver” provisions

Included in the terms of a number of purchase agreements entered into by the Group 1s an arrangement whereby the
payment of cash consideration to, and/or the retention of share-based consideration by, the vendors of acquired entiies
15 contingent upon the relevant vendors remaining with the Group for a defined penod  If a vendor ceases to remain with
the Group for the prescnbed penod, the vendor may forfeit ts entitlement to payment of the cash consideration and/or s
ability to retain its share-based consideration, at the discretion of the Group

In hght of our assessment, we have now corrected and restated the accounting treatment of deferred consideration
payable These arrangements will be deemed to be “separate transactions” for accounting purposes, the effect of which
1s that they are treated as payments to former owners, to be expensed in accordance with other applicable Intemnational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union
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Strategic Report

Year Ended 30 June 2015

Review of the business (Continued)

Shareholders’ funds increased by 880% due to both increases in retained earnings and £448m of new shares 1ssued
dunng the year that facilitated the acquisition of the Slater & Gordon Solutions business in May 2015, offset by the

goodwill impairment

The Group’s “quick ratio” (current assets as a percentage of current habilities) has increased pnncipally due to the
acquisiton of the Slater & Gordon Solutions business

Principal risks and uncertainties
For the going concern assessment, please refer to Note 1 for further information

Financial Instrument Risks

The Group has established a nsk and financial management framework whose pnmary objectives are to protect the
Group from events that hinder the achievement of the Group's performance objectives

The objectives aim to imit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capitat exists and monitor the
management of nsk at a business unit level

Use of denvatives

The Group uses inferest rate hedges to adjust interest rate exposures in order to guaraniee fixed interest payments
where payments are vanable and hence exposed to interest rate movements

Exposure to credit, liquidity, cash flow risk

Credit nsk s the nisk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by falling to
discharge an obligahon The main exposure to credit risk in the Group is represented by the receivables (debtors and
disbursements) owing to the Group

The maximum exposure to credit nisk, excluding the value of any collateral or other secunty, at the end of the reporting

penod of recogrused financial assets 1s the camying amount of those assets, net of any prowisions against those assets,
as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements  Refer to Note 29 for full details

of the exposure

Liguidity nskas the nsk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial habiities
The Group aims to mitigate hquidity nsk by managing cash generation by its operations, applying cash collection targets
throughout the Group The Group also manages hquidity nsk by ensunng that adequate borrowing faciities are

maintained

By order of the board
K Fowle

Director 31 March 2016
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Page 5




Directors’ Report
Year Ended 30 June 2015

The Directors present their report, together with the financial report of the consolidated entity consisting of Slater and
Gordon (UK} 1 Limited (*the Company”) and its controlled entities (Jointly referred to as “the Group”), for the financial year
ended 30 June 2015 This financial report has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS, adopted by the European Union) Compliance with International Accounting Standards Beard {IASB}
ensures complhance with Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”)

Directors
The directors in office at any time during the financial year and up to the date of this report are

+  KJFowle
« AAGrech
» €D Evans (resigned 27 March 2016)

Principal Activities

Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited i1s the immediate holding company of Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP whose principal activity
1s providing legal advice The Company derives its income from the provision of business services to Slater & Gordon
{UK) LLP together with interest on loans and profit distnbutions from Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP

In May, the Company acquired the Professional Service Division (rebranded Slater Gordon Solutions) of Guindell Plc
The acquisition of the Professional Service Division supports the strategy to become the leading Personal Injury group in
the UK and provides access fo a comprehensive platform of businesses, processes and infrastructure

The Company considers its iImmedrate and ulbtmate Parent Company to be Slater and Gordon Limited, a company
incorporated in Australia

Business Model and Main Objectives

Through its subsidianies, the Company aims to deliver high quality legal and ancillary services for individuals,
membership organisations, affinity groups and other strategic commercial partners in their personal, employment and
business affairs The Company is committed to becoming one of the largest and most trusted providers of personal legal
services 1n the United Kingdom This will be achieved through the successful integration of the past year's acquisitions,
buillding awareness of the Slater & Gordon brand and building strategic relationships

Results

The consolidated results for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set out on page 11 No dividend has been proposed by the
Group The Directors do not feel that there are any relevant key performance indicators that need to be disclosed in
addition to the financial information included 1n the financial statements

Financial instruments

The Company has entered into an (nterest rate swap to reduce the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates on
the loans borrowed from the Parent Company's banks The fair value of the swap arrangement at the balance sheet date

was £176,382
Political and charitable donations

Dunng the penod the Company made no political or chantable donations

Employee involvement

The Company's policy 1s to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff counciis and at meetings, matters
likely to affect employees’ interests

Information abaut matters of concern to employees 1s given through information bulletins and reports which seek to
achieve a common awareness on the pan of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's

performance
Disabled persons

The Company’s policy 1s to recruit disabted workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill All necessary assistance
with imitial training courses 1s given Once employed, a career plan 1s developed so as to ensure suitable opportunities for
each disabled person Amangements are made, wherever possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to
enable them to perforrn work identified as appropnate to their aptitudes and abilities

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED
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Directors’ Report
Year Ended 30 June 2015

Auditor

Dunng the year, Ernst & Young LLP, were apponted as auditors, and are deemed to be reappointed under section
487(2) of the Comparies Act 2006
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Repont, Directors' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law, the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance wath Interational Financia! Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
as adopted by the EU and for the Company in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

(‘UK GAAP")

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss for that penod

In the case of the UK GAAP parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair iew of the state of the affairs of the Company

In prepanng those financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company wiif
conbinue In business

In the case of the IFRS financial statements, IAS 1 requires that the Directors prepare Group financial statements for
each financial year, which present fairly the financial pesition of the Group and the financia! performance and cash flows
of the Group for that year

In prepanng the Group financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounbing Estimates
and Errors and apply them consistently,

- present infermation, including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and
understandable information,

- provide additronal disclosures, when compliance with specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insuffictent to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and condiions on the Group's financial position and
financial performance, and

- state that the Group has complied with IFRSs, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Group and
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

SLATER & GORDON (UK} 1 LIMITED




Directors’ Report
Year Ended 30 June 2015

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared using the going concern assumption which contemplates the realsation of
assets and the settlement of habilites in the ordinary course of business

The Company and its subsidianes are members of the Slater & Gordon Consolidated Group (the Global Group) whose
ultimate parent entity 1s Slater and Gordon Limited, a company incorporated in Australia

At 30 June 2015 the Group had net assets of £220 1m and cash of £39 2m The Company is rehant upon its ulimate
parent entity in relation to ongoing financial support The Company has recewved confirmation from its parent entity that it
will support the Company to meet its habilites as and when they fall due, but only to the extent that funds are not
otherwise avallable to the Company to meet such habiites The parent has also confirmed that it will continue te provide
the financial support outlined above for a penod of at least 12 months from the date of signing of this financial report

At 31 December 2015, the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group had net assets of AUD375 Om, which decreased since
30 June 2015 pnmanly due to a nan-cash impairment charge of AUD876 4m and the adoption of AASB 15 The Group
had net current assets of AUD509 4m The Group had drawings of AUD783 Om under its syndicated debt facility, against
iruts of AUDS50 3m at 31 December 2015 The Group had cash on hand of AUD51 9m and other borrowings of

AUD10 3m, resulting in net debt (drawn debt faciities less cash and cash equivalents) of AUD741 4m and available
hquidity of AUD119 2m At 31 December 2015, the Group's net debt position had increased since 30 June 2015 by
AUD118 0m, reflecting underlying cash requirements in the business At the date of signing of the financial report the
Group has drawn its existing facilibes in full

Since 1 .July 2015, the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group has obtained vanous amendments from its banking
syndicate (“lenders”) to the Slater and Gordon Syndicated Facility Agreement (“SFA”) As at the date of the Company’s
financial report, the consohdated Slater and Gordon Group remains in comphance with all its undertakings under the
SFA Under the SFA the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group agreed to present to the lenders and their financial
advisers proposals which may include amendments to the current SFA These proposals have been provided to the
lenders in ine with the contractual requirements of the SFA In the event that amendments are required by the lenders
and If any such amendments are not implemented by 30 Apnl 2016, repayment dates for the SFA may be brought
forward to a date no earlier than 31 March 2017

Based on discussions to date, the Directors of the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group are of the view that the
consolidated Slater and Gordon Group will comply with the above obligations The consolidated Slater and Gordon
Group has further inthiated a comprehensive review including an assessment of revised financial forecasts, and the
implementation of performance improvement programmes with the aim of improving the profitability of the business and
reducing the level of drawn debt

The Directors, having given consideration to the current financial forecasts for the Group and the Company, the
engagement with the banking syndicate and its financial adwisers, the comprehensive review, and the performance
improvement programmes being implemented by management, consider the going concern basis of preparation 1s
appropnate for a penod to 31 March 2017

Statement of disclosure to the auditor

So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware
Additionally, the Directors have taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s aware of that

information

On behalf of the board

K Fowlie 31 March 2016
Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SLATER & GORDON
(UK) 1 LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Slater & Gordon UK (1) Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2015 which
compnse the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the related notes 1 to 31 for the Group accounts, and the Company's Balance Sheet and the related
notes 1 to 11 for the Company accounts The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation of
the Group financial statements 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Umion The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company
financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responstbility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilittes of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 7 to 8, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsinlity
Is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intenationaf
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements sufficient to give
reascnable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent
Company's crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentaton of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Strategic and Directors’ Report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinton

> the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's
affars as at 30 June 2015 and of the Group’s and the Parent Company's loss for the year then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, and

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information gven in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared ts consistent with the financial statements

SLATER & GORDCN (UK} 1 LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SLATER & GORDON
(UK) 1 LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, \n our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been receved from branches not visited by us, or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
» we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other Matters

The censolidated financial statements for 2014 are unaudited

fwyp v YO“—7 L(/

Kewvin Harkin (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Reading

31 MAR 2016

Dated

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Unaudited
Revenue and other income
Fee revenue - rendenng of services 3 127,347 90,939
Net movement in work In progress 3 15,587 10,778
Services revenue 3 10,852 -
Subtotal Revenue 153,786 101,717
Gain from bargain purchase 3 11,709 8,733
Other income 3 2,591 1,279
Total revenue and other income 168,086 111,729
Less expenses
Salaries and employee benefit expense 4 66,125 46,661
Payments to former owners 4 2,996 2,061
Share based payment expense to former owners 4 3,916 3,035
Cost of sales 4 8,832 -
Rental expense 5,769 5,266
Advertising and marketing expense 19,651 9,991
Administration and office expense 13,568 9,925
Consultant fees 1,787 1,549
Finance costs 4 5,607 4,613
Bad and doubtful debts 4 2,645 1,491
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 2,244 1,979
Goodwill Impairment 269,062 -
Costs associated with acquisitions 5,525 2,074
Other expenses 4 6,179 2,714
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense {245,820) 20,369
Income tax expense 5 5,390 3,856
(Loss)/profit for the year after iIncome tax expense (251,210} 16,513
Other comprehensive expense, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in farr value of cash flow hedges 31 110
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 3 110
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax H 110
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax (251,241) 16,403
(Loss)/profit for the year attributed to
Owners of the Company 18 (251,345) 16,391
Non-controlling interests 19 135 122
{251,210) 16,513
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year attributed to
Owners of the Company (251,376) 16,281
Non-controling interests 19 135 122
(251,241) 16,403

The accompanying notes an pages 15 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2015

2015 2014
£000 £°000
Note Unaudited_

Current assets
Cash € 39,159 7.371
Receivables 7 232,753 55,742
Work in progress 8 154,623 56,665
Current tax assets 12,371 -
Other current assets 9 9,848 3.817
Total current assets 448,754 123,595
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 9,384 2913
Receivables 7 32,923 18,033
Work in progress 8 67,994 44,320
Intangible assets 11 304,788 31,634
Deferred tax assets 5 18,190 -
Total non-current assets 433,279 96,900
Total assets 882,033 220,495
Current habilities
Payables 12 323,240 133,694
Short term borrowings 13 100 4,230
Current tax habilittes 1,102 922
Cther current liabilitres 14 5,352 5,600
Provisions 15 4,435 2,061
Total current habihties 334,229 146,507
Non-current labilities
Payables 12 - 2,561
Long term borrowings 13 307,808 40,444
Deferred tax habilities 5 13,623 6,773
Dernvative financial instruments 176 145
Provisions 15 6,084 881
Total non-current habilities 327,691 50,804
Total habilities 661,920 197,341
Net assets 220,113 23,184
Equity
Contnbuted equity 16 448,170 -
Cash-flow hedge reserve 17 {176) (145)
Retamned profits/{(accumulated losses) 18 {228,146) 23,199
Total equity attnbutable to equity holders in the Company 219,848 23,054
Non-controfling interest 19 265 130
Total equity 220,113 23,184

The accompanying notes on pages 15 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 31 March 2016

gned on its behalf by

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 Attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

(Retained Cash

Profits)/ Flow Non-
Contributed Accumulated Hedging controlling Total
Note Equity Losses Researve Total nterest  Equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance as at 1 July 2014
(unaudited) . (23,199) 145  (23,054) (130)  (23,184)
Net loss/(profit) after tax for the year - 251,345 - 251,345 (135) 251,210
Tatal other comprehensive expense for
the year 17 - - 3t 31 - 31
Total comprehensive loss/{income)
for the year - 251,345 N 251,376 (135) 251,241
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners
Share Issuance 16 (448,170) - - (448,170) - _(448,170)
Total transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners (448,170) - - (448,170) - (448,170)
Balance as at 30 June 2015 (448,170) 228,146 176 (219,848) (265) (220,113)
2014 Attributable to the equity holders of the Parent
Cash
Fiow Non-
Contnbuted Retained Hedging controlling Total
Note Equity Profits Reserve Total interest Equity
£'000 £000  £000 £000 £'000 £000
Balance as at 1 July 2013
{unaudited) (75) (6,808) 35 (6,848) (8) (6,856)
Net Profit after tax for the year - (16,391) - (16,391) (122) (16,513)
Total other comprehensive expense for
the year 17 - - 110 110 - 110
Total comprehensive income for the . {16,391) 110 (16,281) (122) (16,403)
Transactions with owners n therr
capacity as owners
Share buyback 16 75 - - 75 - 75
Total transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners 75 . . 75 ; 75
Balance as at 30 June 2014 - (23,199) 145 (23,054) {130) ({23,184)

The accampanying notes on pages 15 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements

SLATER & GORDON (UK} 1 LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Unaudited

Cash flow from operating activities
Receipts from customers 138,056 104,457
Payments to supphers and employees {129,228) (85,765}
Payments to former owners (1,374) -
Interest received 3 145 138
Borrowing costs (1,960) (724)
Income tax paid (1,438) (1,155)
Net cash provided by operating activities 20 4,201 16,951

Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for software development {4.845) (317)
Payment for plant and equipment (5,886} {1,423)
Costs associated with acquisition of businesses (5,525} (2,074)
Payment for acquisiion of businesses, net of cash in subsidianes {653,849) {54,858}
Payment for deferred consideration of pnor pencd acquisitions (5,783) (7.011)
Net cash used In investing activities (675,888) (65,683)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from share i1ssue 16 448 170 -
Repayment to related parties (248) -
Proceeds from borrowings 265,960 56,345
Repayment of borrowings {6,079) (18,917)
Transactions with parent (4,328} 17,599
Net cash provided by financing activities 703,475 55,027
Net increase in cash held 31,788 6,295
Cash at beginning of financial year 7,371 1,076
39,159 7,371

Cash at end of financial year 6

The accompanying notes on pages 15 to 64 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

The following 1s a summary of significant accounting policies adopted by the consolidated entity in the preparation
and presentation of the financial report The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise

stated

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

Stater and Gordon (UK) 1 Limited 1s a company imited by shares, incorparated and domiciled in the United Kingdom
The consolidated financial statements compnise the Company and its controlled entities referred to 1n Note 26,
together referred to as the Group and individually as Group Entities

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, Interpretations and other applicable
authontative pronouncements of the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and the Companies Act 2006

in the United Kingdom
The financial report was authonsed for 1ssue by the Direclors as at the date of the Directors’ Report

The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterling (GBP) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (£'000), except when otherwise indicated

Complianice with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of Slater and Gordon {UK) 1 Limited comply with the Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"} as adopted by the European Union i1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB”)

Historical cost convention

The financial report has been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as modified by revaluations to farr value
for certain classes of assets as descnbed in the accounting policies By publishing the Parent Company financial
statements here together with the Group financial statements the Company 1s taking advantage of the exemption In
5408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individua! iIncome statement and related notes that form part of

these approved financial statements

Swgrificant accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial report requires the use of certain estimates and judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies Those estimates and judgements that are significant to the financial report are disclosed in Note

2
Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared using the going concemn assumption which contemplates the reatisation
of assets and the settlement of iabdities in the ordinary course of business

The Company and its subsidianes are members of the Slater & Gordon Consohidated Group (the Global Group)
whose ultimate parent entity 1s Slater and Gordon Limited, a company incorporated in Australia

At 30 June 2015 the Group had net assets of £220 1m and cash of £39 2m The Company is reliant upon its ultimate
parent entrity in relation to ongoing financial support The Company has received confirmation from its parent enbty
that it will support the Company toc meet its labilites as and when they fall due, but only to the extent that funds are
not otherwise available to the Company to meet such lrabiites The parent has also confired that it will continue to
prowide the financial support outlined above for a penod of at least 12 months from the date of signing of this financial

report

At 31 December 2015, the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group had net assets of AUD375 Om, which decreased
since 30 June 2015 pnmanly due to a non-cash impairment charge of AUD876 4m and the adoption of AASB 15 The
Group had net current assets of AUD509 4m The Group had drawings of AUD783 0m under its syndicated debt
facility, against imits of AUD850 3m at 31 December 2015 The Group had cash on hand of AUDS1 9m and other
borowings of AUD10 3m, resulting in net debt (drawn debt faciibies less cash and cash equivalents) of AUD741 4m
and available iqudity of AUD119 2m At 31 December 2015, the Group’s net debt positon had increased since 30
June 2015 by AUD118 Om, reflecting underlying cash reqguirements in the business At the date of signing of the
financra! report the Group has drawn ts existing facilibies in full

Since 1 July 2015, the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group has obtained vanous amendments from its banking
syndicate (“fenders”) to the Slater and Gordon Syndicated Facility Agreement (“SFA™) As at the date of the
Company's financial report, the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group remains in comphance with all its
undertakings under the SFA Under the SFA the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group agreed to present to the
lenders and therr financial advisers proposats which may include amendments to the current SFA These proposals
have been provided to the lenders in line with the contractual requirements of the SFA In the event that amendments
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report {continued)

are required by the lenders and if any such amendments are not mplemented by 30 Apni 2016, repayment dates for
the SFA may be brought forward to a date no earlier than 31 March 2017

Based on discussions to date, the Directors of the consolidated Slater and Gordon Group are of the view that the
consolidated Slater and Gordon Group will comply with the above obligations The consolidated Slater and Gordon
Group has further initiated a comprehensive review including an assessment of revised financial forecasts, and the
implementation of performance improvement programmes with the aim of improving the profitabihty of the business
and reducing the level of drawn debt

The Directors, having given consideration to the current financial forecasts for the Group and the Company, the
engagement with the banking syndicate and its financial adwisers, the comprehensive review, and the performance
improvement programmes being implemented by management, constder the going concem basis of preparation 1s
appropnate for a penod to 31 March 2017

{b} Principles of consohdation

The consohdated financial statements are those of the consohdated entity, compnising the financial statements of the
parent entity and of all entihes which the parent entity controls The Group controls an entity when 1t 1s exposed, or
has nghts, to vanable returns from its mvolvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its
power over the enhity

The financial statements of subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting penod as the parent entity, using
conststent accounting policies Adjustments are made to brning into Iine any dissimilar accounting pohicies which may

exist

All intercompany balances and transactions, including any unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated on
consohdaton Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control s established and are de-recognised
from the date that control ceases

Non-controlling interests in the results of subsidianies are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive iIncome and conschdated statement of financial position

Any changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidianes that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidianes are accounted for as equity transactions

(c) Revenue
Rendering of services

Itis the Group's policy to recognise revenue In accordance with the revenue recogrnition cntena descnbed in 1AS 18
Revenue

Revenue from rendenng of services to customers is recognised upon delivery of the service to the customer The
majonty of revenue from services 1S compnsed of fees billed, with the remaining amount representing movement in
work in progress and services revenue Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic
benefit wili flow to the entity and that revenue can be reliably measured The Group measures revenue at the fair
value of the consideration recerved or receivable

The Group has implemented practice standards within each region to monitor the progression of individual cases,
and thereby to determine the likely outcome of the transaction The practice standards are based on the Group’s
significant depth of expenence in progressing the vanous types of legal work undertaken to conclusion

The Group renders the following key services to customers

« provision of legal services for personal inury claims,

s provision of services for general law incorporating project htigation, and

s provision of legal and complementary services from SGS, acquired from Quindell Plc on 29 May 2015 Referto
Business Combinations Note 28
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
c) Revenue (continued)
Revenue resulting from work In progress movement

Revenue includes the difference in work in progress value between reporting penods The revenue recognised
excludes the net movement in work in progress contnbuted by the acquisition of chient matters ansing from a
business combination or file specific acquisiion

In relation to Personal Injury legal matters, the Group identifies individual contracts at a similar stage of completion
This means that the nghts and obligations contained in each contract do not vary matenally from one contract to
another in each category of work that the Group typically performs for clients

The measurement of this component of revenue 15 based upon

s the eshmate of fees upon completion of the matter,

« the probability of the success of the matter, and

« the percentage of completion of the matter

On an individual chent matter basis this means that as work In progress increases on a client matter, the increase in
work in progress 1s recorded as a revenue tem When a matter 1s finalised, the full amount of the actual fees for

services I1s Invoiced or billed to the client and recorded as revenue This 1s then offset by the work in progress matter
being wntten back to nif {recognised as a negative revenue amount) neutralising the previously recorded revenue

Provision of legal and other services resulting from Slater Gordon Solutions

Legal Services
These services relate to road traffic accident (*RTA"), employee hability/pubhc hability (*ELPL") and noise induced

heanng loss (“NIHL") cases Revenue i1s recognised by stage of completion, consistent wath the treatment outlined
above for provision of services from personal injury claims

Other services include replacement vehicle hire, vehicie repair, provision of medical reports and rehabtlitation

Vehicle hire and repar

Revenue relating to car hire, repair and claims management services 1s measured at the far value of the
consideration receivable, net of Value Added Tax (“VAT") and other sales taxes Revenue 1s recognised when
services are provided, including an appropnate proportion of any serices that are in progress at the reporting date It
1s recognised only when «t can be estimated reliably

Hire revenue 1s recognised on a stage of completion bass as it i1s accrued on a daily basis for each day that the
vehicle is on the road with the client Revenue and costs are accrued on each specific vehicle at the GTA (the
Association of Bntish Insurers General Terms of Agreement for credit hire arrangements) or contracted rates

The benefit of the service to the customer 1s generated over time and the ability to estimate the stage of completion is
high given it 1s based on actual days and known rates

Vehicle repair revenue ts recogrnised on a 'significant act’ basis whereby the significant act 1s the completion of a
repair At this point the obligation 1s fulfilled The corresponding cost of repairis also recognised at this point

Administration fee revenue on car hire/repair as set under the GTA 1s recogmised at the start of the respective
service

Medical Reports and Services
Revenue 1s eamed from the procurement of medical reports and other services

The instructing party will request SGS to procure a service An appointment 1s arranged with a third party medical
practitioner The sigrificant event for revenue recognition 1s considered to be the attendance at the appointment of
the instructing party’s client At this point there 1s certainty over the outcome Therefore, medica! reports revenue s
recognised once an appointment has been attended as this 1s considered to be the significant act in accordance with

IAS 18

Rehabiitation Services

Revenue 1s recogmised when the initial assessment appointment has been attended as this 1s considered to be the
‘significant act’ The medical practiioner will confirm the course of treatment required in the initial assessment For
rehabilitation, the instructing party 1s hable for the costs as they have instructed the services on behalf of an
individual
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1- Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(¢} Revenue (continued)

Interest Revenue

Interest revenue 1s recagnised when 1t becomes receivable on a proportional basis taking inte account the interest
rates applicabie to the financial assets

Other revenue
Cther revenue 1s recognised when the nght to receive the revenue has been estabhshed

All revenue 1s stated net of value added tax (“VAT™)

{d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and short-term deposits with an
onginal matunty of three months or less Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current habiites
on the consolidated statement of financial posttion For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of cutstanding banking
overdrafts

Under the SRA Accounts Rules 2011 the Group I1s required to have a separate bank account to hold and receive
chent money This must be under the name of the LLP and the name of the account must also include the word
‘client’ All chent money must be held in a client account Client monies do not appear in the financial statements

{e) Disbursements

Disbursements are only recogrised when it 1s assessed that a reimbursement will be received from the client or on
his or her behalf The disbursements are treated as a separate asset The amount recognised for the expected
reimbursement does not exceed the relevant costs incurred

The amount of any expected reimbursement is reduced by an allowance for non-recovery based on past expenence
{n Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 1s reviewed annually by Directors to ensure 1t1s not in excess
of the recoverahle amount from those assets Recoverable amount i1s the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value In use Value in use 1s based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
post-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific
to the asset

Depreciation

Land 1s not depreciated

The depreciable amounts of all other property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives,
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless it I1s reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term

The depreciation rates used for each class of assets are

Class of fixed asset Depreciation rates Depreciation method
Fixtures, Fittngs and Equipment 500-6667% Straight Line and Dimunishing Value
Low value asset pool 18 75-37 50% Diminishing value

An asset’s residual value and usefut life 1s reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at the end of each reporting penod
An asset's carrying amount is wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount I1s
greater than its estmated recoverable amount Any impairment losses are recogmised i the profit or loss

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by companng proceeds with the carrying amount These gains and
losses are included in the profit or loss
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Leases

Leases are classified at their nception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the
agreement so as to reflect the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership

Finance leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all of the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset, but not
the legal ownership, are transferred to the consolidated entity are classified as finance leases Finance leases are
capitalised, recording an asset and liability equal to the fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, including any guaranteed residual values The interest expense is calculated using the interest rate implicit
in the lease and is included in finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income Leased assets are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives where 1t s likely the consolidated entity will obtain
ownership of the asset, or over the term of the lease Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the
lease liabihty and the lease interest expense for the penod

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor retams substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operahng leases Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive iIncome on a straight-ine basis over the lease term Lease incentives under operating leases are
recognised as a hability and amortised on a straight-hne basis over the life of the lease

(h)  Work in progress (“WIP")

Work In progress represents client cases which have not yet reached a conclusion and compnises personal injury
cases, services performed ancillary to personal injury cases, non-personal injury cases and project litigation cases

The Group allocates work in progress between current and non-current classifications based on a histonical analysis
of the Group's work Iin progress balances and velocity rates to determme expected tming of seftlements Refer Note
1{t) regarding changes to account classification dunng the financial year ended 30 June 2015

Work in progress ansing from legal services performed by Slater and Gordon Lawyers

Work 1n progress 15 either carmed at cost or it may include profit recogrrsed to date based on the value of wark
completed The following are the methodologres adopted for each division in determining the value of work in

progress
Personal Inyury Law work in progress

Personal injury law work in progress 1s measured using the regional practice standards applicable to each region
established by the Group to determine the stage of compietion using a methodology

a) to examine the nature and extent of work performed for ndwidual cases, and
b) to identfy services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed

The regional practice standards incorporate value pricing and fixed fee valuations, applying a probability of success
factor, making allowance for the “No Win No Fee” conditional fee arrangements, under which the Persona! Injury

practice operates

The Group conducts a detailed review of the stage of completion calculations for all cases on a half-yearly basis
When necessary, the Group revises the estimates of revenue for the services performed The need for such revisions
does not necessanly indicate that the outcome of the transaction cannot be estimated rehably, rather it mplicitly
includes some estimation uncertainty (Refer Note 2(b) Cntical Accounting Estimates and Judgments — Work in

progress )
General Law work 1n progress

For estate, probate, industnal law, commercial law and funded project itt)gatiton matters, tme records and histoncal
levels of fees billed are used in determining the value of werk completed

Project Iigation work in progress

Project itgation matters are defined as any matters where total professional fees and/or disbursements are likely to
exceed £1 0 millon over the course of the conduct of the matter(s)

Work in progress in project htigation matters 1s recognised on self-funded project itigation matters for which a
favourable outcome 15 considered probable For such projects, work in progress I1s inibially valued at costs mcurred
less a discount for the likely recovery of those costs Cost includes both vanable and fixed costs directly related to
cases and those that can be attnbuted to case activity and that can be allocated to specific projects on a reasonable
basis Where a project hittgation matter has reached partal or full setttement and an enforceable agreement to
recover the professional fees exists, work in progress i1s valued at the settied fee amount and discounted for
percentage file completion, and the probabulity of the full fee being collected Project itgation matters that are not
expected to be realised within twelve months are classified as non-current
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h)  Work in progress (“WIP"} {continued)

Work tn progress arsing from services provided by Siater Gordon Solutions

Legal Services

Revenue from work in progress from non-heanng loss files (RTA, ELPL} s recognised based on the following key
milestones on a matter

1) Validation - this is the inihial stage of the case,

n Collation pre-med — matters with claim notification form (“CNF”) submitted, but pre-receipt of medical report,
m) Collation post-med — medical report received, but pnor to submussion of setflement pack,

v} Valuation — settlement pack submitted, but pnor to issue of proceedings, and

v}) Issue — post 1ssue of proceedings

The measurement of this component of revenue 1s consistent with the Group approach for valuing WIP based on
average fees, probability of success and percentage completion

No value of work in progress has been recognised for Noise Induced Heanng Loss ("NIHL") files as the amount of
revenue cannot at this stage (30 June 2015) be measured reliably

Vehicle hire and repatr

Work in progress I1s recognised for the following transactions

1) Incomplete WIP — where a car hire 1s still in use, and

)] Biling not completed ~ this occurs where the car hire has been returned or repairs completed where the
invoice 1s still outstanding (due to the time penod required for ali documentation to be in place before tt1s
issued)

Work in progress 1s recogrused based on the probable inflow of economic benefits flowing to the entity which occurs

before settlement by the insurer Settlement could take considerable time to recover A dilution rate 1s apphed on the

invoice to recognise the fact that there may be a settlement adjustment with the insurer if the insurer disputes any
costs This also takes into account the fact that some cases may not be 'no fault’

Medical reports and rehabilitation services

Work i progress i1s recognised when an appointment has been attended The amount will remain in work in progress
until the discharge form has been received at which point the rehabilitation serice 15 invaiced This value remains in
work in progress until the number of sessions required 1s known at which paint the invoice is raised

Work in progress ts calculated based on the average amount charged out, based on histonc cases less a histonc
dilution factor applied to reflect the fact that not all amounts will be billed

For medical reports, the work in progress balance I1s calcufated when the appointment 1s attended

(1} Business combinations

A business combination 1s a transaction or other event in which an acquirer cbtains contro! of one or more
businesses and results in the consolidation of the assets and habilites acquired Business combinations are
accounted for by applying the acquisition method

The consideration transferred 1s the sum of the acquisition-date far values of the assels transferred, equity
instruments 1ssued or habihes incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquired Deferred consideration
payable 1s measured at farr value Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 1s recognised at the

acquisition-date fair value

Goodwill 1s recognised initially at the excess over the aggregate of the considerabion transferred, the farr value of the
non-controlling interest, and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previousty held equity mterest (in case of
step acquisibon), less the fair value of the Wdentifiable assets acquired and habilihes assumed

If the fair value of the acquirer's interest 1s greater than the aggregate of the constderation transferred, the fair value
of the non-controlling nterest, and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equrty interest (in
case of step acquisiion), the gain 1s immedsately recognised In the profit or loss as gain from bargain purchases
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Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0] Business combinations (continued)

In conjunchon with the business combination transaction there may be a transfer of assets between controlled entities
as part of restructunng the acquired business The parent accounts for such transfers through reallocation of the cost
of the investments in its statement of financial position Acquisttton related costs are expensed as incurred

() Intangibles and goodwill

Software development costs
Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which it 1s incurred

Development costs are caprtalised when it is probable that the project will be a success considenng its commercial
and technical feasibility, the entity 1s able to use or sell the asset, the enhity has sufficient resources and intent to
complete the development and its costs can be measured reliably Capitalised development expenditure 1s stated at
cost less accumulated amortisatton Amorhisation 1s calculated using a straight-ine method to allocate the cost of the
intangrible assets over therr estimated useful ives Amortisation commences when the intangible asset is available

for use

Software development costs are camed at cost less accumulated amorbsation and any accumulated impairment
losses These assets have been assessed as having a finite useful hfe and once operating in the Group are
amortised over the useful life of 5-8 years

Trademarks and Brand names

Trademarks acquired i a business combination and recogrused separately from goodwill are imitially recogmsed at
therr far value at the acquisitton date (which 1s regarded as their cost) The fair value of trademarks 1s based on the
discounted estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the trademark being owned

Trademarks are carned at cost less accumulated amertisation and any accumulated impairment losses Trademarks
that have been assessed as having a finite useful ife are amortised over therr finite life

Brand names acquired as part of the acquisition of Slater Gordon Solutrans have been carned at cost These brand
names have been assessed as having an indefinite useful ife, therefore no amortisation is applicable

Customer relationships

The {fair value of customer refationships acquired in a business combination i1s determined using the multi-penod
excess eamings method, whereby the subject asset 1s valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are
part of creating the related cash flows They are assessed as having a finite useful life and are amortised over their

useful iife

Goodwilf

Goodwll 1s initially measured as the excess over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the fair value (or
proportronate share of net assets value) of the non-controlling interest, and the acquisibon date fair vaiue of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest (in case of step acquisition), less the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and labiihes assumed

Goodwill 1s not amortised, but 1s tested annually for impairment or more frequently If events or changes in
cireumstances indicate that it might be impaired Goodwill 1s carned at cost less any accumulated mpairment losses

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, iIntangible assets not yet ready for use and intangible assets that have an tndefinte useful ife are not
subject to amortisation and are therefore tested annually for impairment or more frequently If events or changes in
crrcumstances indicate that they might be imparred Assets subject to annual depreciation or amorhsation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances anse that indicates that the camying amount of the asset

may be impaired

An impairment loss 1s recognised where the carnying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount The
recoverable amount of an asset 1s defined as the higher of its farr value less costs of disposal and value in use

For the purposes of mpairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash fiows {cash-generating units)
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Taxation

Taxaton consists of Income tax, and Value Added Tax ("VAT")
Income tax

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred tax

Current tax

Current Income tax expense or benefit 1s the tax payable / recervable on the current pernicd’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each junsdichon adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and hiabilihes
attnbutable to temporary differences and unused tax losses The current iIncome tax charge i1s calculated on the basis
of the tax [aws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting penod in the countnes where the Group
operates and generates taxable income

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and labilites are recognised for temporary differences at the applicable tax rates when the
assets are expected to be recovered or habilities are settled Deferred tax liabilites are not recognised if they anse
from the initial recogrition of goodwill Deferred tax 1s also not accounted for if it anses from imubial recognition of an
asset or habiity in a transaction, other than a business combmation, and at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only If it 1s probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised, such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recogmised to the extent that i has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used

Deferred tax assets and hablibes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
1s realised or the hability ts settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporting date

Curmrent and deferred tax for the year are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively Where current tax or deferred tax anses
from the imitial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect 1s included i the acecounting for the business

combmation

Value Added Tax (“VAT")

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT, except where the VAT incurred 1s not
recoverable from the UK Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs {*HMRC") or Malta Inland Revenue (*“MIR™) and 1s
therefore recognised as part of the asset’s cost or as part of the expense item Receivables and payables are stated
inclusive of VAT

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the HMRC/MIR 1s included as part of recesvables or
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the VAT component of investing
and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
net of the amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the relevant taxation authonty

{m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
for which it 1s probabie that an outflow of econormic benefits will result in an amount that can be reliably measured

A provision for solicitor kability claims ts made for the potential future cost of claims brought against the Group by
former clients The provision s determined by including the estimated maximum amount payable by the Group under
its Professional Indemnity Insurance Policy on all claims notified to its insurer i
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) i
{n) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations

Liabiibes ansing in respect of wages and salanes, annual leave and any other employee benefits expected to be
settled within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts based on remuneration rates which
are expected to be paid when the liability 1s settled The expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences such as annual leave and accumulated sick leave I1s recognised n the prowision for
employee benefits All other short-term employee benefit obligaticns are presented as payables

Long-term employee benefit obhigations

The provision for employee benefits in respect of long service leave and annual leave payable later than one year
have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits These
estimated future cash flows have been discounted using market yields, at the reporting date, on corporate bonds with

matching terms to matunty

Employee benefit obligations are presented as current habiities in the consolidated statement of financial position if
the entity does not have an unconditronal nght to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date,
regardless of when the actual settlement 1s expected to occur

Defined coniribution pension plan \

The Group makes contributions to defined contnbution superannuation plans in respect of employee services
rendered dunng the year These superannuation contnbutions are recognised as an expense in the same perod as

the employee services are received

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision when a bonus 1s payable in accordance with the employee’s contract of
employment and the amount can be reliably measured

Terrmination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment of an employee or group of employees 1s terminated before the
nomal retirement date, or when the entity provides termination benefits as a result of an offer made and accepted in
order to encourage voluntary redundancy

The Group recognises a provision for terminatton benefits when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, or if earher, when the termination benefits are included n a formal restructuring plan that has been
announced to those affected by it If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting
date, then they are discounted and presented as non-current Labilities

(o)  Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the far
value of the equity instruments at the grant date

The consclidated entity operates share-based payment employee share and option schemes The fair value of the !
equity to which employees become entitled 1s measured at grant date and recognised as an expense over the vesting

penod, with a corresponding increase to an equity account Detalls regarding the determination of the farr value of

equity-settled share-based transactions are set out In Note 23 In respect of share-based payments that are

dependent on the satisfaction of perforrnance condiions, the number of shares and options expected to vestis

reviewed and adjusted at each reporting date The amount recogrised for services received as consideration for

these equity instruments granted 1s adjusted to reflect the best estimate of the number of equity instruments that

eventually vest

Equity-setiled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the farr value of
the goods or services received, except where that fairr value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity cbtains the goods or the

counterparty renders the service

The Group operates an Employee Ownership Plan ("EOP") The EOP allows employees to purchase Vesting
Convertible Redeemable ("VCR") shares in the Company by way of an interest-free loan Per the policy, the loan has
been recorded as a financial instrument
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{o) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

e The VCR shares vest over a speciffied penod of time At the tme of vesting, VCR shares convert into ordinary
shares with disposal restnctions The terms and conditions of these shares are further descnbed in Note 23

« The value of the benefit received by an employee from i1ssue of the VCR shares 1s assessed as the difference
between the value of the VCR shares at the date of 1ssue and the present value of the amount payable by the
employee for purchase of the VCR shares In accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the benefitis
expensed on a proporional basis over the penod from issue date to the date on which the employee becomes
unconditionally entitted to the full benefit of ownership of the shares

In 2015 the Equity Incentive Plan {"EIP") has been introduced to replace the EOP without prejudice to the nghts of
current participants in the EOP Refer to Note 23 for more detaills

(P Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs can include interest expense, finance charges in respect of finance leases, amorhisation of discounts
or premumes, ancillary costs relating to borrowings, and exchange differences ansing from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the penod 1n which they are incurred, except for borrowing costs incurred as part of
the cost of the construction of a qualifying asset which are capitalised until the asset is ready for its intended use or

sale
{q) Financial iInstruments

Classification
The Group has financial instruments In the following category loans and recevables The classification depends on

the purpose for which the instruments were acquired Management determines the classification of its financial
mstruments at intial recognition

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments consist of investments in equity, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables

Non-dernvative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attnbutable transaction costs (if
any), except for instruments recorded at fair value through profit or loss After imtial recognition, non-denvative
financial instruments are measured as descnbed below

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-interest beanng, non-dernvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market The loans are inthally recognised based on fair value plus directly attinbutable
transactions costs and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Impairment of financial assels

Financial assets are tested for impairment at each financial year end to establish whether there 15 any objective
evidence of impairment

For loans and recevables or held-to-matunty tnvestments carned at amortised cost, impairment loss 1s measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective interest rate The
amount of the loss reduces the cammying amount of the asset and 1s recogrused n profit or loss The impairment loss
ts reversed through profit or loss if the amount of the impaiment loss decreases (n a subsequent penod and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurrning after the impairment was recognised

Financial habilities

Financial labiities include trade payables, other creditors and loans from third parties including loans from or other
amounts due to director-related entities

Non-denvative financial iabilities are recogrused at amortised cost, comprising onginal debt less pnncipal payments
and amortisation

Non-interest beanng financial habilities for deferred cash consideration on the acquisitron of acquired firms s
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method The imphed interest expense 1s recogmised in
profit and loss
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g)  Financial instruments {continued)

Dervative financial instruments

The Group designates certain denvatives as either

» hedges of far value of recognised assets or habilites or a firm commitment (fair value hedge), or

» hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges)

The Group currently has cash flow hedges only, relating to interest rate sk management At the inception of the

transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as the Group's nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions are documented it 1s the Group's policy to hedge a
portion of its exposure in order to minimise the impact of an adverse change in interest rates that the Group 1s subject

to

Assessments, both af hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective 1n offseting changes in fair values or cash flow hedged

items, are also documented
Fair value hedge

Changes In the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the

cansoldated statement of comprehensive income, together with any changes in the farr value of hedged assets or |
habihties that are attnbutable to the hedged nsk
Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges i1s
recognised In a hedge reserve in equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately
in the consoldated statement of comprehensive income

Amounts accumulated in the hedge reserve in equity are transferred to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income In the penads when the hedged item will affect profit and loss

{n Foreign currency translations and balances

The financial statements are produced using the functional currency The functional currency 15 Pounds Stering
{GBP)
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies of enties within the consolidated group are translated into funchonal currency at
the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction except for foreign operations

Foreign currency monetary items that are outstanding at the reporting date (other than monetary items ansing under
foreign currency contracts where the exchange rate for that monetary item is fixed in the contract) are translated
using the spot rate at the end of the financial year

Except for certain foreign currency hedges, all resulting exchange differences ansing on settlernent or re-statement
are recognised as revenues and expenses for the financial year

Foreign operations
Entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated as follows

+ assets and habihties are transiated at the closing rate on reporting date,

+ Income and expenses are translated at actual exchange rates or average exchange rates for the penod, unless
the exchange rate fluctuated significantly dunng the penod, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactons are used, and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, a separate component of
equity

Goodwll and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and

habihties of the foreign operaton and translated at the closing rate

(s) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year
disclosures

Comparatives have also been updated for changes in accounting policies as descnbed in Note 1{t) below
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Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(t) Changes in accounting policies adopted by the Group

Change to accounfing for business combinations

The Group has reassessed its accounting treatment of deferred consideration payable in the context of its acquisition
of legral service practices This reassessment has taken into account an analysis of histoncal acquisitions in Australia
and the United Kingdom where cash and share-based consideration payable to the vendor princpals of businesses
acquired by the Group is deferred

Histoncally, all cash payments and share 15sues to vendors, whether restrained, deferred, contingent or otherwise,
have been treated as consideration for the relevant business acquisition

The Group has now carefully considered the appropnate treatment of these payments in accordance with IFRS 3
Busmess Combinations with regard to the treatment of specific components of deferred consideration  IFRS 3(r)
requires that transactions remunerating employees or former owners of the acquired business for future services be
treated as separate transactions that are not to be included in the acquisition

An assessment has been made in relation to those arrangements that include contingent consideration to vendors of
the business that are subject to so-called "bad leaver” provisions

fncluded in the terms of a number of purchase agreements entered into by the Group 1s an arrangement whereby the
payment of cash consideration to, and/or the retention of share-based consideration by, the vendors of acquired
entiies 1s contingent upon the relevant vendors remaining with the Group for a defined period If a vendor ceases to
remain with the Group for the prescnbed penod, the vendor may forfett its entitliement to payment of the cash
consideration and/or its ability to retain its share-based consideration, at the discretion of the Group

We now take the view that such arrangements will be deemed to be "separate transactions” for accounting purposes,
the effect of which 1s that they are treated as payments to former owners, to be expensed in accordance with other
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards

Classification of Work In Progress and Disbursements

Historically, all of the Group's work In progress and disbursement balances have been classified as current assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position, with the exception of the work in progress of the Group's Project
Litigation practice which included a current and non-current component The work in progress on the Group's
Personal Injury Law (“PIL") matters were histoncally assessed as being capable of being resolved at any stage of the
matters process and therefore all work in progress and disbursements on PIL matters were classified as current
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position

The Group has reassessed the classification of its work in progress and disbursement balances in the consohdated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015 A histoncal analysis of the Group's work in progress balances and
histoncal file velocity rates were used to form a view on the expected timing of settlements The Group carefully
considered the appropnate accounting as to this analysis and the applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)

As a result of this reassessment, the Group has made adjustments to the presentation of its work n progress and
disbursement balances to include a current and non-current classification in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 3Q June 2015

(u)  Adoption of new and amended accounting standards

The Group has adopted all the new mandatory standards and interpretations for the current reporting pertod The
adoption of these standards and interpretations did not result in a matenal change on the reported results and

position of the Group
v Accounting standards issued but not yet effective at 30 June 2015

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFR$15 15 operative for annual reporting pencds beginming on or after 1 January 2018 IFRS 15 specifies the
accounting for an individual contract with a customer, also recogrising that the requirements of the standard may be
applied to a portfolio of contracts for performance obligations with similar charactenstics, if the enfily reasonably
expects that the effects on the financial statements of applying the standard to the portfolro would not differ matentally
from applying this standard to the individual contracts (or performance obligations) within that portfalio
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Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
(v) Accounting standards i1ssued but not yet effectrve at 30 June 2015 (continued)

IFRS 15 introduces a five step process for revenue recognition with the core prnciple being for entihes to recogruse
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that 1s,
payment) to which the entity expects to be entitfed in exchange for those goods or services The five step approach s

as follows

« Step 1 ldentify the contracts with the customer,

s Step 2 Identify the separate performance obligations,

e Step 3 Determine the transaction pnce,

« Step 4 Allocate the transactron pnce, and

+« Step 5 Recognise revenue when a performance obligation 1s satisfied

IFRS 15 will also result in enhanced disclosures in relation to revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were
not previously addressed comprehensively (for example, service revenue and contract modifications) and improve
guidance for multiple-element arrangements

The Group currently determines the stage of completion based on a methodology which identifies services performed
to date as a percentage of total services to be performed for an outcome to be rendered in the case

A thorough reassessment of the valuatton methodology within all practice areas in each region 1s being undertaken to
determine the full mpact of the standard The evaluation i1s in progress at the tme of reporting and will be completed
to facilitate the Group’s intended early adoption of IFRS 15 in the financial year ending 30 June 2016

IFRS 9 Financial tnstruments

{FRS 9 introduces significant revisions to the classificatton and measurement of financial assets, reducing the number
of categones and simphfying the measurement choices, including the removal of impairment testing of assets
measured at fair value The amortised cost model s available for debt assets meeting both business model and cash
flow charactenstics tests All investments in equity instruments using IFRS 9 are to be measured at fair value

Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting supersedes the general hedge accounting requirements in |IAS 39 Financral
instruments Recognifion and Measurement, which many consider to be too rules-based and arbitrary Chapter 6
requirements include a new approach to hedge accounting that ts ntended to more closely align hedge accounting
with nsk management activities undertaken by entities when hedging financial and non-financial nsks Some of the
key changes from |IAS 39 are as follows

« to allow hedge accounting of nsk components of non-financial items that are identifiable and measurable (many of
which were prohibited from being designated as hedged stems under 1AS 39),

« changes tn the accounting for the time value of options, the forward element of a forward contract and foreign-
currency basis spreads designated as hedging instruments, and

« modification of the requirements for effectiveness testing (including removal of the ‘bnghtine’ effectiveness test
that offset for hedging must be in the range 80%-125%)

Revised disclosures about an entity’s hedge accounting have also been added to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disclosures

Impairment of assets 1s now based on expected losses in IFRS 9 which requires entities to measure

¢ the 12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date), or

» full ifebme expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the hife
of the financial instrument

The effective date 1s for annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 15 expected to be apphed when it becomes effective
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Note 2. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In prepanng these consclidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the apphcation of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
hiabilibes, iIncome and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewrsions to estmates are recognised
prospectively The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are

{a) impairment of goodwill

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating units (*CGU's") according to applicable business operations CGUSs for the
purposes of impairment testing are

1 UK — Personal imjury Law (“SGL PI")
2 UK - General Law ("SGL GL")
3 Slater Gordon Solutions (*SGS”)

Dunng the current financial year the Group acquired several new entihes within the UK, as a result of the sigmificant
geographical expansion of the Group and expansion of business activities, additional CGUs have been dentified and
the Group now allocates the UK subsidianes into two CGUs  SGS has been identified as its own CGU due to the
different revenue streams and independent cash flows

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculahon requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a matenal impairment loss may anse Refer to Note 11

{b)  Work in progress (“WIP”)

WIP 1s the balance of cases not yet billed at the end of the reporting penod The Group measures WiP based on the
estmated fees likely to be rendered to the client multiplied by the percentage stage of completion at the reporting
date adjusted for the probabtiity of success To determine the probability of success of a case the Group takes into
account past history of similar cases and a level of jJudgement is required based on experience and historical
performance of simlar matters Refer to Note 8§

The stage of completion valuation methodology incorporates best estimates of expected revenue and the percentage
of total services completed to date The expected revenue 1s based on the expected fee for the nature of the legal
service provided with reference to internal and external (where available) histoncal and forecast fee levels The
percentage of completron and probability of success 1s made with reference to internal and external (where available)
informationt and expenence, and having regard to where a file 1s in its life cycle

The Group conducts detalled reviews of all case files on a half-yearly basis and revises calculations based on
estimates of revenue and stage of completion as necessary While the Group remains satisfied that the valuation
methodology applied to wark 1n progress 1s robust and supported by histoncal trends, if acknowledges that the actual
amount billed may vary from the estimated amounts prevtously recognised However, the Group does not anticipate
any matenal vanation in the amounts recognised

In addihon, when new businesses are acquired, there 1s a transition penod dunng which time the Group's practices
and procedures are embedded into the operations of the new business Therefore the valuation of work in progress
acquired 1 a business combination may be adjusted during the penod of provisional accounting for the acquisition

{c} Provisional accounting

Provisional accounting is applied by the Group to account for business combinations when the iniial accounting 15
incomplete at the end of the reporting penod By its nature provisional accounting involves estimates and judgements
based on the information available to the Group at the end of the reporting penod, while it continues to seek
information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date

(d) Income tax

Deferred tax assets and labiities are based on the assumption that no adverse change will occur in the income tax
legislation in the UK and the anticipation that the Group will denive sufficient future assessable income to enable the
benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that management considers
that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available to utiise those temporary differences Refer to Note 5
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Note 2: Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements {continued)

(e}  Fair value measurements

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financral assets and habilities

When measunng the fair value of an asset or a habiiity, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible
Fair values are categonsed into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuahon
techmiques as follows

« Level 1 quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilifies that the entity can access at
the measurement date,

¢ Level 2 inputs, other than quoted pnces included within Level 1, that are abservable for the asset or habiiity,
either drrectly or indirectly, and

« Level 3 inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a hiability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the farr value measurement i1s categonsed in its entirety in the same level of the farr value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that 1s significant to the entire measurement

For assets and habilittes that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurnng basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonsation (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting penod

Further information about the assumptions made in measunng fair values Is included in the following Notes
+ Note 23 - Share-based payment arrangements

+ Note 28 - Businass combinations

» Note 29 — Financial nsk management

+ Note 30 - Farr value measurements

{f) Determination and fair value of intangibles in a business combination

The farr value of customer relatronships acquired in a business combination is determined using the muiti-penod
excess eamings method ("MEEM") whilst the fair value of trademarks acquired in a business combination 1s based on
a relief from royatties approach These methods require esttmates by management of future income streams,
apphcable royalty rates and discount rates Refer to Note 28

(g) Principal versus agent
SGS Motor Services provides car hire and reparr services for not at fault chents, and the Group acts as a pnncipal

= Although the services are prowided by third party suppliers, the Group has the pnmary responsibility to ensure that
the services have been delivered to the chents

« The Group cannot vary the prices set by the supplier, as it 1s govemned by an industry framework

» The Group collects the revenue from the customer and bears all credit nsk

Revenue resulting from car hure and reparr services within SGS Motor Services are recognised on a gross basis
(h) Provision for solicitor hability

Provision for solicitor hability claims relates to open claims and potental future claims as identified at the end of the
reporting penod Estimates of the provision are determined based on fustoncal data, taking into account the nature of
the existing claim and expected reimbursed expense will be included The provision determined includes the
estimated maximum amount payable by the Group Refer to Note 15

SLATER & GORDON (UK} 1 LIMITED
Page 29




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 3: Revenue

Note 2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Fee Revenue Unaudited
Rendenng of services 127,347 80,939
Net movement in WIP 15,587 10,778
142,934 101,717
Services revenue
Ancillary Revenue 8,085 -
Commission Revenue 583 -
Services - Non Legal 2,184 -
Total services revenue 10,852 -
Gain from bargain purchase 28 11,709 8,733
Other income
Interest 145 138
Other 2,446 1,141
2,591 1,279
Note 4: Profit from Continuing Activities
Note 2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Finance costs expense Unaudited
Interest on bank overdraft and loans 4,998 3,778
Interest on deferred consideration payable to vendor on acquisitions 561 802
Interest on obhgations under hire purchases 48 33
5,607 4,613
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 891 1,121
Software development 394 65
Trademarks 959 793
2,244 1,979
Cost of sales
Ancillary revenue 7,681 -
Commission revenue 1 -
Rendenng of services — non-legal 1,160 -
8,832 -
Bad and doubtful debts
Bad and doubtful debts 2,644 1,491
Bad and doubtful debts — Services 1 -
2,645 1,491
Other Expenses
Management Fees 2,827 -
Staff related 1,922 1,700
Facility 1,342 341
Sundry 88 673
6,179 2,714
Salanes and employee benefit expense
Staff costs 64,560 46,661
Share based payments expense 356 -
Post-employment benefits 1,209 -
66,125 46,661
Payments to former owners
Share based payment expense to former owners 3.916 3,035
2,996 2,061

Payments to former owners
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Note 5 Income Tax

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Unaudited
income tax expense
Current tax 1,917 3,229
Deferred tax 3,847 651
Adjustment for cument tax relating to pnor perods (374) (24)
5,390 3,856
The prima facie tax payable on profit before tax differs from the income tax
expense as follows (245,820) 20,369
At the statutory income tax rate of 20 75% (2014 unaudited 22 5%) (51,008) 4,583
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income
Goodwill impairment non-deductible 55,830 -
Bargamn gain non-taxable {2,430) (1 965)
Other non-allowable items 3,361 1,487
Non-assessable items - (290)
5,753 3.815
Adjustments in respect of pnor periods (373) 54
Difference in overseas tax rate (113) -
Deferred tax assets not recognised 546 -
Other (423) {13)
5,390 3,856

Income tax expense

In the Budget on 8 July 2015, the Chancellor announced reductions in the corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% from
1 Aprl 2017 and to 18% from 1 Apnl 2020 These rates were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015 This will

reduce the company’s future current tax charge accordingly

In addition, the Government in the Budget of 16 March 2016 announced its intention to further reduce the UK

corporation tax rate to 17% from 1 Apnl 2020 The legisiation dealing with the reduction in rates will be included In

future Finance Acts
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Note 5 Income Tax {continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed in respect of the followsng items, because 1t 1s not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can use the benefits therefrom

2015 2014
£'000 £ 000
Unaudited
Deductible temporary differences - -
Tax losses 76,000 -
76,000 -
Deferred tax relates to the following
2015 2014
£000 £000
Unaudited
Prowvision for impairment - 74
Property, plant and equipment 123 95
Maltese refundable tax credit 6,347
Other 90 57
Revenue losses carned forward 16,380 -
Deductible goodwill 4,020 4,318
Work in progress {17,437) (10,811)
Intangibles (4,956) (506)
Net deferred tax assets/{hablities) 4,567 {6,773}
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows
Deferred tax assets 18,190 -
Deferred tax habiibes (13.623) (6,773)
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 4,567 (8,773)
Note 6 Cash
2015 2014
£000 £000
Note Unaudited
Cash at bank 20(a) 39,159 7,371

As at 30 June 2015 cash includes an amount of £1,612,093 held in escrow on behalf of the Company by sehcitors in

respect of an acquistion

The unutiised bank faciities at 30 June 2015 were £73,955,000
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Note 7: Receivables

2015 2014
£ 000 £'000
Current Unaudited
Trade debtors 146,448 32,446
Impairment of trade debtors {37,587) (2,460)
108,861 29,986
Disbursements 119,387 25,894
Allowance for non-recovery 2,906 (274)
122,293 25,620
Other receivables 1,599 136
232,753 55,742
Non-current
Dishursements 37,621 19,128
Allowance for non-recovery (4,698) (1,096}
32,923 18,033
Balance at end of the year 265,676 73,775
Note 8: Work in Progress
2015 2014
£ 000 £000
Current Unaudited
Non-personal imjury 4,526 6,177
Personal injury 150,097 50,488
154,623 56,665
Non-current
Perscnal injury 67,994 44,320
67,994 44 320
Note 9: Other Current Assets
2015 2014
£000 £000
Current Unaudited
Prepayments 6,445 3,089
Other current assets 3,403 728
9,848 3,817
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Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment

2015 2014

£000 £'000

Note Unaudited

Fixtures & fittings at cost 22,688 8,556
Less accumulated depreciation {13,451) (5,643)
10(a) 9,237 2,913

Land and builldings at cost 147 -
Less accumulated depreciation - -
10(b) 147 -

9,384 2,913

Total plant and equipment

Movements in carrying amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of

the current financial year

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Unaudited
{a) Fixtures & fittings

Balance at the beginning of the year 2913 1,747
Additions 5,830 1,424
Addiions through acquisition of entities 2,437 926
Reclassificabion of plant and equipment (1,044} -
Depregiation expense (891) {1,121)
Disposals (8) (63}
Carrying amount at end of year 9,237 2.913

{b) Land and buildings
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions through acquisiton of entities 76 -
Reclassification of bulldings 71 -
147 -

Carrying amount at end of year
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Note 11: Intangible Assets

Note 2015 2014
£'000 £000
Unaudited
Goodwill — at cost 541,405 28,842
Accumulated impairment (269,062) -
Net carrying amount 11(a) 272,343 28,842
Software development — at cost 14,946 734
Accumulated amortisation (7,280) (380)
Net carrying amount 11(b) 7,666 354
Trademarks— at cost 2,278 2,278
Accumulated amortisation (1,752) {793)
Net camrying amount 11{c) 526 1,485
Brand names - at cost 24,253 953
Accumnulated Impairment loss - -
Net carrying amount 11(d) 24,253 953
304,788 31,634

Total intangible assets

Movements in carrying amount

Movement in the camying amounts for each class of intangible assets between the beginning and the end of the curment

financial year

2015 2014
Note £000 £'000
Unaudited
(a) Goodwill
Opening net book amount 28,842 23,007
Additions in respect of business combinations 28 512,563 5,835
Impairment (269,062) -
Closing net book value 272,343 28,842
(b) Software development
Opening net book amount 354 92
Additions 4,845 317
Additions in respect of business combinations 28 1,888 10
Reclassification from plant and equipment 973 -
Amortisation expense (394) (65}
Closing net book value 7,666 354
(c) Trademarks
Opening net book amount 1,485 1,678
Additions in respect of business combinations 28 - 600
Amortisation expense (959) (793)
Closing net book value 526 1,485
(d) Brand names
Opening net book amount 953 953
Additions in respect of business combinations 23,300 -
24,253 953

Closing net book value
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Note 11. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Goodwill and indefimite life intangibles acquired through business combinations have been allocated to individual
cash generating units (“CGUs") in the UK bustness for the purposes of impaimment testing being the Personal Injury
Law and General Law division (“SGL") and SGS

The recoverable amount of goodwill and indefinite life intangibles allocated to each of the CGUs has been determined
based on a value In use calculation as required by IAS 36 Impairment of Assets This uses financial budgets and
cash flow projections approved by senior management covening a five year penod

The value In use 1s compared to the net carmmying amount of the CGU If the calculated value in use exceeds the net
carrying amount, no impairment loss 1s recorded

Key assumptions used in value 1n use calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The Group performed sts annual mpairment test as at 30 June 2015 and a reassessment at 31 December 2015 The
Group 15 sensitive to the recovery of fees in ts legal business, and the velocity of the resolution of those files In
performing the value-in-use calcutations for each CGU, the Group has applied post-tax discount rates to discount the
forecast future post-tax cash flows

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below

. Average fees recoverable for legal matters,
. Average file velocity for legal matters, and
. Cost of capital and discount rate used

Average fees recoverable for legal matters

Average fees recoverable have been based upon an analysis of histoncal fee events in each of those practce areas,
in conjunchon with estmated fees of exssting matters

Individually each of the praclice group's average fee levels 1s immatenal to the Group result, however should there be
a matenal negative impact upon the average fee recoverable of matters across a number of practice groups in each
junsdiction this could have a matenal impact upon the impairment analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been conducted on the average fees recoverable for each of the CGUs, a reasonable level of
negative movement in the average fees recoverable 1s unlikely to give nse to additional impairment to any of the
CGUs

Average file velocity for legal matters

The settlement profile of legal matters has been based upon the average settiement penod for matters for each
Jjunsdiction and practice area

The velocity of settlement of legal matters has an impact upon the sensitvity analysis Individually a slowing of file
velocity in a practice area 1s immatenal, however should there be a matenal negative impact on the settlement period
of matters across a number of practice groups and junsdictions this could have a negative impact upon the estimated
future value of the CGU on a net present value basis due to the negative impact upon cash flows

Sensitivity analysis has been conducted on the average velocity of matters in each of the CGUs and a reasonable
level of negative movement in the settfement penod for matters 1s unlikely to give nse to additronal impairment to any

of the CGUs
Cost of capital and discount rate used

Cost of capital has been assessed per CGU Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the nsks
specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the time value of money and indvidual nsks of the underlying assets
that have been incorporated in the cash flow estimates

The discount rate has been adjusted to be a post-tax rate because in performing the value in use calculations for
each CGU the Group has used forecast future attnbutable post-tax cash flows

The discount rate calculation 15 based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its operaling segments and 1s
denved from its weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC") The WACC takes nto account both debt and equity The
cost of equity 15 denved from the expected retumn on investment to the Group's investors The cost of debt 1s based
on the interest-beanng borrowings the Group 1s obliged to service  CGU specific nsk 1s incorporated by applying
individual beta factors and additional asset specific nsk premium where appropnate The factors that compnse the
WACC are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data Adjustments to the discount rate are made
having regard to the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows tn order to reflect an appropnate post-tax

discount rate

For the UK PiL, UK GL and SGS CGUs a post-tax cost of capital of 9 25% has been applied This cost of capital has
been assessed with reference to the Company's weighted average cost of capital and independent third party
analysis of its cost of capital This cost of capital was utilised as the Company's parent has observable market data
to allow an appropniate assessment of its cost of capital as a hsted company on the Austrahan Stock Exchange
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Note 11. Intangible Assets (Continued)

United Kingdom- Personal [njury Law

The recoverable amount of the UK — PIL CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
fiow projections from the financial forecasts approved by senior management covenng a five year penod

A 5 00% (2014 unaudited 6 80%) nomnal growth rate has been applied to the FY 16 forecast for the penods FY17 to
FYZ20 with a long term nominal growth rate adopted of 2 50%

The growth rates beyond the 5 year penod have been detenmined with reference to forecast inflation rates, population
and industry growth rates
The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the acquisitions of Walker Smith Way, Leo Abse & Cohen and

the personal injuries practice of Fiint Bishop in FY'15, increased marketing in the United Kingdom for the Slater and
Gordon brand which has led to increased brand recognition and growth achieved in the Personal Injunies practice

groups since acquisition
The post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 1s 9 25% (2014 unaudited 9 10%)

Sensitvity analysis has been conducted on the key assumptions and a reasonable level of negative movement in
each assumption does not cause impairment to the CGU

United Kingdom — General Law

The recoverable amount of the United Kingdom — GL CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections from the financial forecasts approved by senior management covenng a five year period

An 8 00% (2014 unaudited 6 80%) nominal growth rate has been apphed to the FY16 forecast for the pencds FY17
to FY20 with a long term nominal growth rate adopted of 2 50%

The growth rates beyond the 5 year penod have been determined with reference to forecast inflation rates, population
and industry growth rates

The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the acquisiton of Walker Smith Way, increased marketing in
the United Kingdom for the Slater and Gordon brand which has led to increased brand recognition, in additon to
growth achieved in the General Law practice groups since acquisition

The post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 1s 9 25% (2014 unaudited 9 10%)

Sensitivity analysis has been conducted on the key assumptions and a reasaonable level of negative movement in
each assumption does not cause impairment to the CGU

Slater Gordon Solutions

The recoverable amount of Slater and Gordon Solutions (“SGS7) CGU as at 30 June 2015 has been determined
based on a value i use calculation using approved forecasts covering a penod of 5 years Cash flows beyond 5
years were subject to a fong term nominal growth rate of 2 5% with reference to forecast inflation rates, population

and industry growth rates
The post-tax discount rate apphied to cash flow projections 15 9 25%

This impairment calculation, applied as at 31 December 2015 in connection with the Group's half year reporting,
indicates total impaiment of £401 6m However, the forecasts that were used in the value in use calculation took
account of proposed changes to UK law in relation to personal iqury claims below £5,000 which were announced by
the Chancellor of the Exchequer in November 2015 The impairment relating to these proposed changes to UK law,
and other changes ansing since 30 June 2015, has been assessed as compnsing £132 5m of the total impairment of
£401 6m, with the balance of £269 1m being recorded as at 30 June 2015
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Note 12* Payables

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Unaudited
Current
Unsecured liabilibes
Trade creditors and accruals 100,182 40,985
Legal creditors 147,225 23,701
Intercompany creditors 69,674 63,330
Vendor liabilities — acquisibions 6,158 5,678
323,240 133,694
Non-current
Vendor liabilities — acquisitions - 2,561
Note 13: Borrowings
Note 2015 2014
£000 £000
Unaudited
Current
Secured
Cash advances - bills of exchange - 4,000
Finance lease liability 100 230
100 4,230
Non-current
Secured
Cash advances - bills of exchange 307,760 40,300
Finance lease habiity 48 144
307,808 40,444

The Group leases certain of its fixed assets under finance leases The lease terms range from 3 to 10 years (2014
unaudited 3 to 10 years) The Group has options to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the
lease terms The Group's obhgations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets

Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract rates ranging from 3 20%

to 7 43% (2014 unaudited 3 96% to 9 25%) per annum

2015 2014
£000 £'000
Unaudited
Present Present
Future value of Future value of
mimmum mmnimum Mimimum munimum
lease lease lease lease
paymeni Interest payment payment Interest payment
Within one year 104 (4} 100 240 (10) 230
One year or later and not later

than five years 49 1) 48 147 (3) 144
Greater than five years - - - - - -
153 {5) 148 387 (13) 374
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Note 14. Other Current Liabilities

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Unaudited
Current
Unsecured
LLP member capital contnbutions 5,352 5,600
5,352 5,600
Note 15: Provisions
Current
Onerous Deferred Sohcitors
lL.ease Consideration Liability Total
£ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 July 2013 (unaudited) - - - -
Charged - 2,061 - 2,061
Balance as at 30 June 2014 {unaudited) - 2,061 - 2,061
Charged 1,502 965 1,114 3,581
Utilised {301) (1,473) - (1,774)
Bustiness combination - - 567 567
Balance as at 30 June 2015 1,201 1,553 1,681 4,435
Non-current
Onerous
Lease Dilapidations Total
£'000 £ 000 £'000
Balance as at 1 July 2013 (unaudited) - 279 279
Charged - 290 290
Business combination - 312 312
Utiised - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2014 (unaudited) - 881 881
Charged 1,939 1,421 3,360
Business combination - 1,843 1,843
Balance as at 30 June 2015 1,939 4,145 6,084
Note 16. Contributed Equity
2015 2015 2014 2014
Shares £ 000 Shares £000
unaudited unaudited
Ordinary shares fully paid 448,170 448170 - -
Balance at end of the year 448,170 448,170 - -
2015 2015 2014 2014
Movement in Ordinary Share Capital Shares £'000 Shares £000
Unaudited Unaudited
Balance at the beginning of the year - - 75 75
Issued dunng the year
Shares 1ssued at par and fully pard 448,170 448,170 - -
Less capnal raising costs, net of tax - - {75) (75)
Balance at end of the year 448,170 448,170 - -
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Note 17° Reserves

2015 2014

£'000 £'000

Unaudited

Cash flow hedging reserve 176 145
176 145

Movements i carrying amount

Movement in the camying amounts for each class of reserve between the beginning and the end of the current financial

year
(a) Cash flow hedging reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 145 35
Loss recognised on interest rate hedges, net of tax N 110
Balance at the end of the year 176 145
Nature and purpose of reserves
Cash flow hedging reserve
The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedge transactions that have not yet occurred, net of tax
Note 18- Accumulated Losses
2015 2014
£000 £000
Unaudited
Retained profits/Accumulated losses
Balance at the beginning of year 23,199 6,808
Net (loss)/profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders {251,345) 16,391
Total avalable for appropriation (228,146} 23,189
Dividends paid - -
Balance at end of year (228,146) 23,199
Note 19. Non-Controlling Interests
2015 2014
£000 £ 000
Unaudited
Interest in
Reserves 130 8
Retained profits 135 122
Balance at end of year 265 130
(2) Non-controlling interests
Balance at the beginnuing of the year 130 8
Non-controling interest share in net profit after tax 135 122
Balance at the end of the year 265 130
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Note 20: Cash Flow Information
Note 2015
£000

2014
£ 000
Unaudited

{a) Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash inciudes cash on hand and at call deposits with banks
or financial inshiutions, mvestments in money market instruments matunng within less than three months and net of bank

overdrafts

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows 1s reconciled to the related

items in the statement of financial position as follows

Cash on hand 6 39,159 7,371
39,159 7,371
(b} Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit after income tax
(Loss)Profit before income tax {245,820) 20,369
Income tax payable {5,390} (3,856)
{Loss)Profit after income tax (251,210) 16,513
Non-cash flows in profit from ordinary actvities
Depreciation & Amortisation 4 2,244 1,979
Goodwill Amortisation 269,062 -
Share Based Payments Expense 4 4,272 3,035
Accrual for payments to former owners 4 2,996 2,061
Costs associated with acquisttion 5,525 2,074
Notonal Interest on Deferred Consideration 4 561 802
Gain on bargain purchase (11,709) (8,733)
Changes in assets and habilities
Recevables {21,037} 706
Other Assets (1,308) (167)
Plant and Equipment 10 (10,661)
Work in progress (19,738} 5,628
Payables 19,878 149
Income tax payable {5.059) (2,104)
Deferred taxes 8,461 4,784
Provisions 1,253 885
Cash flows from operations 4,201 16,951
Note 21- Commitments and Contingencies
2015 2014
£000 £000
Unaudited

Operating lease and non-cancellable contracts

Non-canceflable operating leases and commitments (including rental of office space) contracted but not capitahsed in the

consolidated financial statements

Within one year 7,285 3,161
One year or tater and not later than five years 21,216 5,539
Greater than five years 28,402 275

56,903 8,975
Bank guarantees in respect of rental properties and acquisitions 7,675 2,780
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Note 21: Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

The Group 1s party to a £420,000,000 syndicated facility agreement dated 29 May 2015 pursuant to which its ultmate
parent company, Slater and Gordon Limited, 1s a borrower (the "Facility Agreement”) Pursuant to the terms of the
Facility Agreement, the Company has given a cross-guarantee (along with other Group Companies) in relation to all
liabilities outstanding under the Facility Agreement in favour of the Finance Parties (as defined under the Facility
Agreement) The Company is also party to a debenture dated 29 May 2015 (the "Debenture”) pursuant to whtch the
Company (together with other Group Companies) covenants with Westpac Banking Association (acting as Secunty
Trustee for iself and the Secured Parties (as defined in the Debenture)) that it will on demand pay all habihties
outstanding under the Facility Agreement (and associated finance documents) when they are due and payable and
grants security over all of its assets in favour of Westpac Banking Association (acting as Secunty Trustee for tself
and the Secured Partes)

Note 22° Key Management Personnel Compensations

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
Unaudited

Compensation by Category
Short-term employment benefits 1,577 1,307
Post-employment benefits 26 49
Other benefits 39 14
1,642 1,370

Note 23: Share-Based Payment Arrangements

Slater & Gordon Limited introduced a broad based 'share save' offer to all employees and a new Employee Equity
Incentive Pian (*EIP") which was approved by the shareholders of Slater & Gordon Limited at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting (*AGM"}

Employee equity incentive plan (“EIP")

The plan incorporates a tax-approved scheme to employees in the UK The Plan gives the Group's employees the

cpportuniy to acquire shares in Slater & Gordon Limited Employees can make contnbutions from their pre-tax salary

to acquire £375 (max) worth of shares Such employee contributions are matched by the Group with a free share for .
every share purchased by the employee All employees of the Group in the UK with at least € months service as at .
14 November 2014 are entitled to participate in this Plan Shares acquired under this plan will be held in trust by

MM&K Share Plan Trustee Ltd for a pencd of 5 years from the date of acquisition

Executive equity incentive plan

The plan introduces an ownership-based compensation scheme for executives and senior employees In October
2014, Slater & Gordon Limited's shareholders approved the S+G Executive Equity Incentive Scheme under which
grants of performance nghts have been made The EIP replaces the existng Employee Ownership Plan (“EOP”),

without prejudice to the nghts of current participants in the EOP

Performance nghts are granted for no consideration Under the scheme each performance nght cames an
entitlement to one fully paid ordinary share in $later & Gordon Limited subject to satisfaction of perfarmance hurdles
and/or continued employment at an exercise pnce of nil These executives and senior employees are not entitled to
vole or receve any dividends or attend the meeting of the shareholders dunng the vesting penod Performance nghts
may not be transferred, disposed or pledged as secunty If the executive ceases to be employed by the Group within
the vesting penod, the nghts will be forfeited, except in imited circumstances that are approved by the Board

The performance hurdles are based on the following

« Total Shareholder Return (TSR) QOutperformance Hurdle - This performance hurdle 1s based on Slater & Gordon
Limited's total shareholder return (TSR} against the TSR of the constituent companies within the S&P/ASX 300
index (excluding resources) over the Measurement Penod The performance penod shall be the penod from 1
September 2014 to 31 August 2017

« Compound Annual Growth Rate 1n Earnings per Share (CAGR EPS) Hurdle - This performance hurdle ts based
on the Slater & Gordon Limited’s Compound Annual Growth Rate in Eamings per Share over the Measurement
Period

e Compound Annual Growth Rate in Regional EBITDA (CAGR EBITDA) Hurdle — This performance hurdle is based
on the designated Region's Compound Annual Growth Rate in EBITDA over the Measurement Penod
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Note 23. Share-Based Payment Arrangements (continued)

The perfermance condittons applying to the latest grant (FY15) were as follows

CAGR EPS Hurdle TSR Outperformance
(Group Directors only) CAGR EPS Hurdle Hurdie CAGR EBITDA
% of % of % of
equity to equty to equity to % of equity
Performance  vest Performance vest Performance vest Performance to vest
< 50th
< 10% 0% <7% 0% percentile 0% <15% 0%
50% to S50% to 50% to 50% to
100% 100% pro- 50th to 75th 100% 100% pro-
10% to 15% pro-rata 7% to 10% rata percentile pro-rata 15% to 20% rata
> 75th
> 15% 100% > 10% 100% percentile 100% > 20% 100%

Any performance nghts not vested at the end of the performance penod are forfeited

The far value of services received in retum for the performance nghts granted 1s measured by reference to the
average of valume weighted average price of ardinary shares on each of 5, 10, 15 and 20 days immediately
preceding the grant date The weighted average fair values at grant date are determmed using a fair valuation mode!
which reflects the fact that vesting of the shares 1s dependent on meeting performance cntena based on TSR The
vesting of the shares 1s alse subject to non-market conditions but these are not taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received The assessed fair value of performance nghts granted under this

scheme as remuneration 1§ allocated equally over the penod from grant date to vesting date
The key terms and conditions related to the performance nghts granted under this plan are as follows

Performance Farr value

Contractual life of

Grant date/employee entitled rights of rights at Vesting conditions* perfarmance
granted Grant date rights
Group Executives in the UK (12 44,000 24799 50% subject to TSR 3 years
December 20114) Qutperformance hurdle
and 50% subject to
CAGR EPS hurdle
Regional Executives in the UK (12 152,000 6 1997 50% subject to TSR 3 years
December 2014) QOutperformance hurdle
and 50% subjectto
CAGR EPS hurdle
*All performance nghts include 3 years' service condiion from grant date
Number of nghts granted
Balance at Granted during Vested Forfeited Balance at Exercisable
Grant date beginning the year dunngthe dunngthe endofthe  atend ofthe
of the year year year year year
31 October 2014 - 44,000 - - 44,000 -
12 December 2014 - 152,000 - - 152,000 -

Share-based payment expenses recognised n profit or loss are disclosed i Note 4

Share based payment arrangements to former owners

The Group has changed its accounting treatment of defemred consideration payable for the acquisibon of legal service
practices Arrangements that include contingent consideration to vendors of the business that are subject to so-called
“bad leaver” provisions were previously considered as part of the consideration pa:d or payable for the business

combtnation

Included in the terms of a number of purchase agreements entered into by the Group I1s an arrangement whereby the
payment of cash consideration to and/or the retention of share-based consideration by the vendors of acquired
entities 1s contingent upon the relevant vendors remaining with the Group for a defined penod  If a vendor ceases to
remain with the Group for the prescnbed penod, the vendor may forfeit ts entitltement to payment of the cash

consideration and/or its ability to retain its share-based consideration, at the discretion of the Group

These arrangements are now freated as a share-based payment transaction with the former owners The transaction
1s measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted and then recognised as an expense over the vesting
penod as agreed per each contract The relevant expense 1s disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income
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Note 24. Auditor's Remuneration

2015 2014
£'000 £°000
Unaudited
Amounts received or due and receivable by network firms of Baker Tilly
UK LLP
An audit of the financial report of the Group and review of statutory accounts B 129
Other assurance services - -
- 129
Other auditors — Ernst & Young LLP.
An audit of the financial reports of the subsidianes of the Company and review 161
of statutery accounts -
Due diligence inveshigations 2 -
163 -
Total auditor’s remuneration 163 129

Note 25: Related Party Disclosures

Slater & Gordon {UK) 1 Limited 1s taking advantage of the exemption granted under Financial Reporting Standard
No 8 “Related Party Transactions”, not to disclose transactions with wholly owned group companies which are related

parties

For 2015, £156,963,715 {2014 unaudited £103,626,941)1s owed to the corporate member Slater & Gordon (UK} 1

Limited for loans and share of profit by S & G (UK} LLP
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Note 26: Group Entities

The following subsidianes are exempt from audit requirements under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
relating to subsidiary companies except as noted below

Country of 2?15 2614
incerporation Company Number Ownership Ownership
interest (%)  Interest (%)
Controlled entities
New Claims Dhrect Limited United Kingdom 4432180 100 100
4 Legal Limited United Kingdom 6466579 100 100
4 Legal Soluttans Limited United Kingdom 6492865 100 100
Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP* United Kingdom 0OC371153 100 100
Adroit Financial Planning Limited** United Kingdom 7980535 100 100
Slater Gordon Trust Corporation Limited
previously known as Panncne Trust United Kingdom 8185633 100 100
Corporation Limited
Entities collectively referred to as Slater Gordon Solutions
1ISaaS Technology Limited Untted Kingdom 7434692 100 -
Compass Costs Consultants Ltd United Kingdom 4265483 100 -
Intelhgent Claims Management Limited Uruted Kingdom 5658734 100 -
Mobile Doctors Group Limited United Kingdom 5383361 100 -
Medici Legal Limited United Kingdom 4266208 100 -
Mobile Doctors Solutions Limited United Kingdom 4215291 100 -
Mobile Doctors Limited™ United Kingdom 2446392 100 -
MDL Medical Admimistration Ltd United Kingdom 3688229 100 -
React & Recover Medical Group Limited United Kingdom 7316438 100 -
Recover Healthcare Limited United Kingdom 6836625 100 -
React Medical Reporting Limited United Kingdom 6872536 100 -
React Medical Management Limited United Kingdom 7315629 100 -
Medicalaw Limited United Kingdom 3447569 100 -
Abstract Legal Holdings Limited United Kingdom 5107527 100 -
Accident Adwice Helpline Direct Limited United Kingdom 5107417 100 -
il:len?:;gaahtles Management & Services United Kingdom 5340220 100 .
Fast Track PPl Limited United Kingdom 8012611 100 -
Access to Compensation Limited United Kingdom 5107366 100 -
Cab Claims Limited United Kingdem 5126239 100 -
Liberty Protect Limited United Kingdom 5657846 100 -
Claim4 Limited United Kingdom 5123360 100 -
Accident Advice Helphne Limited United Kingdom 5121321 100 -
Claim 103 Limited United Kingdom 5066798 100 -
g‘;g:f:[} Adwce Insurance Management United Kingdom 5121320 100 -
Sentinel Allance Limited Umited Kingdom 5107418 100 -
Accident Advice (1A) Limited United Kingdom 5141227 100 -
Slater Gordon Solutons Legal Limited
previously known as Quinde!l Legal United Kingdom 7931918 100 -
Services Limited™
Quindell ACH Limited United Kingdom 8586650 100 -
ACH Group Management Limited United Kingdom 6962193 100 -
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Note 26: Group Entities (continued)

Country of
Incorporation

Company
Number

2015
Ownership
Interest (%)

2014
Ownership
Interest (%)

Controlled entities {continued)

Entities colfectively referred fo as Slater Gordon Solutions (continued)

ACH Access Legal Limited

ACH Claims Limited

ACH Media Solutions Limited
ACH Medical Limited

ACH Broker Services Ltd

ACH Quote Me Cover Me Limited

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Crusader Assistance Group Holdings Limited United Kingdom

Accident & Equity Limited
Crusader Group Holdings Limited
Centunon Uninsured Loss Recovery Services

Limited

Equi-Medical Reports Lirited

Equi Rehab Lirmited
Crusader Uninsured Loss Recovery Service

Limited

Crusader Connect Limited

SGS Business Process Services (UK)
Limited previously known as Quindell
Business Process Services (UK) Limited*”

Colegate Vehicle Hire Limited
Colegate Accident Assistance Ltd
Auto Indemmity (UK) Lirited

Overland Limited

Overland Health Limited
Overland Malta (Trading) Limited
Overland Legal Limited*
Property Home Buyers Limited*

*Entitras under voluntary hquidation since November 2014

Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Malta
Malta
Malta
Matlta
Maita

8101562

8085736
08101607
08085771
08403009
08101551
06502635

05264519
05684182

04272317
04830506
04872341

02919599
06777462

03851175
01877766
03700693
02121818
C43412
C49864
C46589
C43415
C49865

100
100
100
100
100

100
100

100
100

100
100
100

100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

75

60

“*Not exempt from audit requirements under section 4894 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED

Page 46




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 27: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Group’'s capital management, capital includes i1ssued capital, and all other equity reserves
attnbutable to the equity holders of the parent The pnmary objective of the Group's capital management 1s to
maximise the shareholder value

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares The Group monitors capital
using a geanng ratto, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Group's am is to keep the geanng
ratio between 30% and 40% in future penods The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payabies, less cash and short-term deposits

2015 2014

£ £

Unaudited
Interest beanng loans 307,908 44,674
Trade and cther payables 176,017 109,993
Less cash and short-ferm deposits (39,159) (7,371}
Net Debt 444,765 147,296
Equity 219,848 23,054
Capital and net debt 664,613 170,350
331% 135%

Gearing Ratio

Note 28: Business Combinations

The Group has reassessed Its accounting treatment of deferred consideration payable in the context of its acquisition
of legal service practices This reassessment has taken into account an analysis of histoncal acquisibons in Austraha
and the United Kingdom where cash and share-based consideration payable to the vendor pnncipals of businesses
acquired by the Group 1s deferred

Histoncally, all cash payments and share 1ssues to vendors, whether restrained, deferred, contingent or otherwise,
have been treated as consideration for the relevant business acquisition

The Group has now carefully considered the appropnate treatment of these payments in accordance with IFRS 3(r)
Business Combinations with regard to the treatment of specific components of deferred consideration

An assessment has been made in relation to those arrangements that include contingent consideration to vendors of
the business that are subject to so-called “bad leaver” provisions

Included in the terms of a number of purchase agreements entered into by the Group 1s an arrangement whereby the
payment of cash consideration to and/or the retention of share-based consideration by the vendors of acquired
entities 15 contingent upon the relevant vendors remaining with the Group for a defined penod if a vendor ceases to
remain with the Group for the prescribed penod, the vendor may forfert its entitlement to payment of the cash
consideration and/or its ability to retain its share-based consideration, at the discretion of the Group

We now take the view that such arrangements will be deemed to be “separate transactons™ for accounting purposes,
the effect of which 1s that they are treated as payments to former owners, to be expensed in accordance with other
apphcable intemational Financial Accounting Standards

Acquisition of business — Slater Gorden Solutions (SGS) (provisionally accounted)

On 29 May 2015 the Group acquired SGS from Quindell Plc  SGS s compnsed of 52 legal entites incorporated in
the UK and Malta as outlined in Note 26

The pnncipal activibies of SGS are

| First notification of loss (*FNOL") services for vanous partner orgamsations, including insurance brokers,
insurers, motonng orgamisations and vehicle manufacturers These services include the facilitation of vehicle
retneval, reparr and replacement vehicle hire for not at fault dnvers,

] Conducting claims on behalf of not at fault parties to road traffic accidents (“RTA"), including credit hire, repair
and personal mjury claims
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Note 28. Business Combinations (Continued)

Acquisition of business — Slater Gordon Solutions (SGS) (provisionally accounted) (continued)

n Conducting clams on behalf of individuals injured in the course of employment or in a public ptace (“EL/PL")
One species of employers’ hability claim that SGS 15 currently conducting are personal injury claims for a large
group of people who allege noise induced heanng loss ("NIHL") as a consequence of employment and who
may be entitled to compensation as a result It 1s expected that these NIHL claims will be concluded i the

next 1 to 3 years, and

v Services complementary to these claims processes, including

a A medical reporting service for claimant lawyers,

b The assessment, tnage and facilitation of rehabilitabon services for not at fault parties injured n

accidents, and

c A costing service for lawyers and law firms

The strategic rationale for this business acquisition 1s

= to become the leading personal injury group n the UK, and

» access to a comprehensive platform of businesses, processes and infrastructure that augments the Group's

existing UK operation

The prowvisional consideration transferred and the value of the consolidated assets and habiities assumed at the

dates of acquisition 1s as follows

Consideration 2015
£'000
Cash Investment 469,194
Liabiliies acquired from previous owner 179,256
Net present value of total consideration 648,450
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£'000
Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,569
- Trade and other recevables 157,132
- Work In progress 75,856
- Plant and equipment 2,449
- Intangibie assets 25,225
- Current tax assets 12,153
- Deferred tax assets 18,190
- Other assets 3.893
Total assets acquired 297,467
Liabihties
- Short-term borrowings (5)
- Payables (159,158)
- Provisions (2,401)
Total labihties acquired {161,564)
Net assets acquired 135,903
512,547

Goodwill on acquisition

SLATER & GORDON (UK) 1 LIMITED

Page 48



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 28: Business Combinations (Continued)
Acquisition of business — Slater Gordon Solutions (SGS) (provisionally accounted) (continued)

The initial accounting for the acquisition of SGS has only been provisionally determined at the end of the reporting
penod

The key item that gave nse to the goodwill above is the capacity of SGS to underpin strategic growth of the personal
injunes practice within the UK market

Since the acquisttion date, SGS has contnbuted total revenue of £19,709,000 and loss after tax of £2,452,000 in the
year ended 30 June 2015, which 1s included within the conschdated profit As at the date of reporting, 1t 1s not
practical to disclose the revenue and profit after tax of the combined entities as If the acquistion took place on 1 July
2014 as the Group does not have access to audited financial information for the pened prior to the date of acquisition
prepared on the same Group accounting policies

Acquisition-related costs for this acquisiton amounting to £4,350,000 have been recognised as an expense In the
year ended 30 June 2015, within the 'costs associated with acquisitions’ fine tem in the statement of profit or loss

The acquisition of SGS has been provistonally accounted for at year end Given the proximity of the acquisition date
to the reporting date, the values of the acquired assets and habilives of SGS are considered provisional Itis also not
practical for the Group to determine an estimate of the noise-induced hearing loss ("NIHL”} claims asset and
associated deferred consideration These will be updated within 12 months post-acquisition in accordance with IFRS
3 Business Combinations

On 5 August 2015, Quundell Plc , the vendor of SGS, published qualified financial statements in which the current
directors and auditors of Quindell Plc explained, inter alia, that relevant informatron relating to transactions entered
mto by the former directors that could impact on the accounting, intention, commercial purpose or value of certain
transactions was not available to them

On 5 August 2015 the Senous Fraud Office in the Unuted Kingdom advised that it has opened a cnminal investigation
into the business and accounting practices of Quindell Plc

The acquisition of SGS was structured as an acquisition of the vanous entities rather than an acquisition of the
common stock of Quindell Plc  Moreover, Quindell Plc provided detalled warranties to the Company in relation to the
operations of the assets compnsing SGS Those warranties are secured by a Wamanty Escrow account holding

£50m
The Company 1s confident that it has no liability as a result of the matters descnbed above

In the course of prepanng these financial statements, the Directors have sought to identify, understand and properly
account for all relevant pnor transactons undertaken by entities within SGS Despite reasonable inquines, including
of current directors of Quindell Ple, the Directors are unable to identify or rationalise every histonc transaction
undertaken by the former directors of the vanous entities and have made farr value adjustments as appropnate The
Directors beheve that none of the known transactions relate to the fundamental business activities or economics of
SGS and none of the known transactions are matenal in value or effect to the Company
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Note 28: Business Combinations (Continued)
Acquisition of Flint Bishop (provisionally accounted)

Acquisition Date  Business Location Business Type

5 September 2014  Flint Bishop LLP Derby, UK Personal Injury Law

The strategic rationale for these bustness acquisitions 1s
» dwversification of earnings through expansion of geographic coverage, and

» to become a dominant law firm brand in the consumer legal services market in the UK

The provisional consideration transferred and the value of the consolidated assets and liabiliies assumed at the
dates of acquisition are as follows

2015
Consideration £000
Cash 1,110
Deferred cash consideration 813
Net present value of total consideration 1,923
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£000
Assets
- Trade and other receivables 110
- Work in progress 1,795
Total assets acquired 1,005
Liablites
- Payables -
- Provisions -
Total habilities acquired -
Net assets acquired 1,905
Goodwill on acquisition 18
The initial accounting for the acquisibons has only been provisionally determined at the end of the reparting penod
The profit and loss results of the acquired businesses are not set out itis not practicable to disclose the profit and
loss results of the acquired businesses as they have been integrated into the existing operations and reporting

structure of the Group

It 1s also not practical to disclose the revenue and profit after tax of the combined entiies as If these acquisittons took ,
place on 1 July 2014 as the Group does not have access to audited financial information for the penod pnor to the
dates of acquisition prepared on the same Group accouniing policies

Acquisition-related costs for these acquisitions amounting to £229,000 have been recognised as an expense In the
year ended 30 June 2015, within the ‘costs associated with acquisihions’ line item in the statement of profit or loss

Acquisition of business - Leo Abse Cohen (provisionally accounted)

Acquisition Date Business Location Business Type
8 May 2015 Leo Abse Cohen Wales, UK Personal Injury Law and Consumer Legal
Services

The strategic rationale for these business acquisitions 1s
« diversification of eamings through expansion of geographic coverage, and
+ to become a dominant law firm brand in the consumer legal services market in the UK

The provisional consideration transferred and the value of the consohdated assets and habilittes assumed at the
dates of acquisition are as follows
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Note 28: Business Combinations {(Continued)

Acquisifion of business — Leo Abse Cohen (provisionally accounted) (continued)

215
Consideration £°000
Cash 5,839
Net present value of total consideration 5,839
Net assets acquired Fair Value

£000
Assets
- Trade and other recevables 177
- Work 1n progress 17,453
- Prepayments 443
Total assets acquired 18,073
Liabilites
- Payables (2,138)
- Provisions (595)
- Accrual (211)
- Deferred tax habilities {1,858)
Total habilities acquired {4,802)
Net assets acquired 13,271
Gain from bargain purchase {7,432)

The initral accounting for the acquisitons has only been provisionally determined at the end of the reporting penod

The profit and loss results of the acquired businesses are not set out 1t 1s not practicable to disclose the profit and
loss results of the acquired businesses as they have been integrated into the existing operations and reporting

structure of the Group

It 1s also not practical to disciose the revenue and profit after tax of the combined entities as if these acquisitions took
place on 1 July 2014 as the Group does not have access to audited financial information for the penod pnor to the
dates of acquisition prepared on the same Group accounting policies
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Note 28: Business Combinations (Continued)
Acquisition of business — Walker Smith Way Limited (provisionally accounted)

On 30 Aprl 2015, Slater and Gordon Limited acquired the business of Walker Smith Way Limited, a personal injury
and consumer law practice operating throughout Northem England and Wales The business and assets of Walker
Smith Way Limited (WSW) were transferred to Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP

The strategic rationale for this business acquisition 1S
« dwversification of eamings through expansion of geographic coverage, and
e to become a dominant law firm brand in the consumer legal services market in the UK

The provisional consideration transferred and the value of the consolidated assets and labilibes assumed at the
dates of acquisition are as follows

Consideration 2015
£'000

Cash 303

Equity 1ssued (665,006 shares at £3 76 per share) 2,500

Net present value of total consideration 2,803

Net assets acquired Fair Value
£'000

Assets

- Cash and cash equivalents 1,133

- Trade and other receivables 3,881

- Work in progress 8,308

- Plant and equipment 35

Total assets acquired 13,357

Liabihtes

- Creditors (5.253)

- Prowisions {(151)

- Deferred tax liabilities (1,030)

Total labiibes acquired (6,434)

Net assets acquired 6,923

Gain on Bargain Purchase {4,120}

The imtial accounting for the acquisition of WSW has only been prowsionally determined at the end of the reporting
penod

The profit and loss result of the acquired business 1s not set out 1t s not practicable to disclose the profit and loss
results of the acquired businesses as it has been integrated into the existing operations and reporting structure of the

Group

it1s also not prachcal to disclose the revenue and profit after tax of the combined entities as if these acquisitions took
place on 1 July 2014 as the Group does not have access to audited financial infermation for the penod pnor to the
date of acquisition prepared on the same Group accounting policies

Acquisition-related costs for this acquisibon amounting to £115,000 has been recognised as an expense In the year
ended 30 June 2015 within the costs associated with acquisttions’ line item n the statement of profit or loss
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Note 28: Business Combinations (Continued)
2014 (Unaudited)

Acquisition of business — Pannone Solicitors LLP {“Pannone”) and related entities

On 14 February 2014, the Group acquired the business of Pannone, a law firm based in Manchester, UK On the
same day the Group also acquired two related entibes, Adroit Frnancral Planning Limted (*Adroit”) and Pannone
Trust Corporation Limited (*Pannone Trust™), now known as Slater Gordon Trust Corporation Limited  Adroit
Financial Planning Limited 1s a financial planning business Pannone Trust Corperation Limited 1s a dormant
company, mitially incorporated to act as the admimistrator of estates and other appomtments having fiduciary
responsibility associated with Adroit

The strategic rationale for these business acquisitions 1s
« dversification of earnings through expansion of geographic coverage, and

+ to become a dominant law firm brand m the consumer legal services market in the UK

The mitial accounting for the acquisition had previously been provisionally determined The necessary fair valuat
considerabion and net assets acquired have now been finalised and are reflected in the amounts detailed below

The value of the assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition are as follows

on of

Consideration 2015 2014
£ 000
Unaudited
Cash 23,575
Share consideration a0
Net present value of total consideration 23,665
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£000
Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 279
- Trade and other receivables 17,152
- Work In progress (156) 22,536
- Plant and equipment 45
- Intangible assets 599
- Other assets 1,075
Total assets acquired {156) 41,686
Liabilities
- Payables (12,776)
- Provisions {2,427)
- Deferred tax labiities (687)
Tota! habiiies acquired (15,890)
Net assets acquired 25,796
Gain from bargain purchase {156) {2,131}
There were 37,718 shares 1ssued as part of the consideration The issue pnice of AUD4 42 1s based on the average

of the volume weighted average pnce of ordinary shares on each of the 20 business days immediately preceding the

completion date

In FY15 the Group entered into a vanation deed with Pannone which reduces the deferred consideration payable for

the acquisiion As a result the Group recognised a gain of £156,000 in the statement of profit or loss

SLATER & GORDON (UK} 1 LIMITED
Pa

ge 53



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 28: Business Combinations (continued)
Acquisition of business — Fentons Solicitors LLP (“Fentons”)

On 27 September 2013, the Group acquired the business of Fentons Solicitors LLP The value of assets and
habihties at the date of acquisttton and converted using the acquisition date rate of exchange are as follows

The strategic raticnale for these business acquisitions 1s

« diversiication of earmings through expansion of geographic coverage, and

» to become a dominant law firm brand in the consumer legal services market in the UK

The mitial accounting for the acquisihion had previously been provisionally determined The necessary fair valuation of
consideration and net assets acquired have now been finahsed and are reflected in the amounts detalled below

The value of the assets and habilities at the date of acquisitton are as follows

2014
£'000
Unaudited

Consideration
Cash 25,250
Net present value of total consideration 25,250
Net assets acquired Fair Value

£'000
Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 4
- Trade and other receivables 25,543
- Work in progress 31,915
- Plant and equipment 886
- Other assets 70
Total assets acquired 58,418
Liabilities
- Payables (23,447)
- Provisions (2,275)
- Deferred tax Labilihes {1,621)
Total habilities acquired {27,343)
Net assets acquired 31,075
Gain from bargain purchase {5,825)
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Note 28: Business Combinations (continued)

Acquisition of other businesses in the UK

The Group acquired the foliowing other businesses in the UK in 2014

Acquisition Date  Company Location

Business Type

Persanal Injury

Acquired
Personal Injunes

16 August 2013 Taylor Vinters LLP Cambndge, UK Law business operations
and assets
30 August 2013 Goodmans Law Limited Liverpeal, UK f:;sonal Injury S:cs’lgzzztgperatlons
29 November 2013 John Pickenng & Partners LLP Halifax, UK E:Lsonal Injury S:glg::ztgperahons
Personal Iniu Personal Injunes
4 December 2013  Chadwick Lawrence LLP Yorkshire, UK Law Jury business operations
and assets
2014
£'000
Unaudited
Consideration
Cash 9,712
Equity 1ssued 667
Farr value of deferred consideration (cash) 6,201
Net present value of total consideration 16,580
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£000
Assets
- Trade and other recevables 5,534
- Wark i progress 8,794
- Plant and equipment 5
- Other assets 38
Total assets acquired 14,371
Liabilibes
- Payables (3.141)
- Provisions (485)
Total habilities acquired (3,626)
Net assets acquired 10,745
Goodwill 5,835
*Spiit as follows
Taylor Vinters LLP 5,297
Chadwick Lawrence LLP 538
Total 5,835
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Note 28 Business Combinations (continued)

2014
£'000
John Pickering & Partners LLP Unaudited
Constderation
Cash 1,550
Net present value of total consideration 1,550
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£ 000
Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents -
- Trade and other receivables 2,008
- Work in progress 1,127
- Plant and equipment -
- Other assets -
Total assets acquired 3,135
Liabilities
- Payables (1,435)
- Provisions (28)
- Deferred tax liabilities (33)
Total habihties acquired {1.496)
Net assets acquired 1,639
Gain from Bargain Purchase {89)
Goodmans Law Limited 2014
£'000
Unaudited
Consideration
Cash 4073
Net present value of total consideration 4,073
Net assets acquired Fair Value
£'000
Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents -
- Trade and other recervables 1,442
- Work in progress 4,151
- Plant and equipment -
- Other assets 30
Total assets acquired 5,623
Liabihbes
- Payables (451)
- Provistons (199)
- Deferred tax haniities (211}
Total habiliies acquired (861)
Net assets acquired 4,762
Gain from Bargain Purchase (689)
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Note 28: Business Combinations (continued)

Carrying amount of Goodwill allocated to CGUs

_....s¢ _sGaLp o SGLGL el _Total
2014 2014 2014 2014
_Unaudited 2015  Unaudited 2015  Unaudited 2015 _ Unaudited 2015
£000's £000's £000’s £000's £000°'s £000’s £000s £000’s
Goodwill - 243,485 24,178 24,194 4,664 4,664 28,842 272,343
Total - 243,485 24,178 24,194 4,664 4,664 28,842 272,343
Note 25. Financial Risk Management
The Group is exposed to a vanety of financial nsks compnsing
1} Credit nsk
n) Liguidity nsk
nm) Fair values
v) interest rate nsk
v) Foreign exchange nsk
The board of directors has overall responsibility for identifying and managing operational and financial nsks
The categores of financial instruments are as follows
Note 2015 2014
£000 £000
Unaudited
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 39,159 7,371
Loans and receivables 7 110,460 30,122
Disbursements 7 1 55,216 43,653
304,835 81,146
Financial liabilities
Payables 12 176,015 109,993
483,923 154,667

1) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by falling to
discharge an obhgation The main exposure to credit nsk in the Group 1s represented by the receivables (debtors and

disbursements) owing to the Group

The maximum exposure to credit nisk, excluding the value of any collateral or other secunty, at the end of the

reporting penod of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets, net of any provisions against
those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements

SLATER & GORDON (UK} 1 LIMITED

Page 57




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 29: Financial Risk Management (continued)
1) Credit nsk (continued)
Credit nsk — Siater Gordon Solutrons

Debts are almost exclusively due from insurance companies The capitalisation of insurers i1s regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authorty in the UK The insurance industry operates a policy holders’ protection scheme to
alleviate the impact of the failure of an insurance company

Credit nsk 1s therefore spread across major UK based motor insurers in proportion to their respective share of the
market No credit insurance is taken out given the regulated nature of these entities

No interest 1s charged on the receivables balances, however late penalty payments become payable at certain dates
under the Association of Bntish Insurers’ General Terms of Agreement SGS does not hold any collateral over these
balances nor has the legal nght of offset with any amounts owed by SGS to the receivables counterparty

There 1s also credit nsk associated with unrendered disbursements and trade receivables Once chent matters are
billed, a sigruficant portion of receivables related to the personal injunes business are considered low nsk This s
because these receivables are collected directly from settlements paid by msurers into trust funds held on behalf of
the Group's clients As at 30 June 2015, approximately 38% of trade receivables relate to the personal injury taw

business

For the non-personal injury law business, the Group 1s exposed to the credit nsk associated with the chent's ability to
meet therr obligations under the fee and retainer agreement The Group minimises the concentration of this credit sk
by undertaking transactions with a large number of clients

Management of credit risk
The Group actively manages its credit nsk by

« assessing the capability of a chent to meet its obligatrons under the fee and retainer agreement,
¢ penodically reviewing the reasons for bad debt wnte-offs in arder to improve the future decision making process,
+ maintaining an adequate provision against the future recovery of debtors and disbursements,

« ncluding in practitener’s Key Performance Indicators {(*KPI's”) measurements in respect of debtor levels,
recovery and investment in disbursements,

« providing ongoing traning to staff in the management of their personal and practice group debtor portfolios, and

« where necessary, pursumng the recovery of debts owed to the Group through external mercantile agents and the
courts
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Note 29: Financial Risk Management (continued)

1) Credit nisk (continued)

At 30 June 2015, the maximum exposure to credit nsk for trade recervables by segment was as follows

2015 2014

£000 £000

Unaudited

UK 51,657 32,446

SGS 94,791 -

146,448 32,446

Trade Receivables 2015 2014

£000 £000

Unaudited

Not past due 59,687 -

Past due 0-30 days 29,759 16,794

Past due 31 -120 days 20,414 8,353

Past due more than-120 days 36,588 7,289

Total 146,448 32,446

2015 2014

£'000 £'000

Bad debt provision reconciliation Unaudited
Opening balance 2,460 954
Additions due to acquisitrons 35,011 1,632
Annual increase and utilisation 116 {126)
37,587 2,460

Closing balance

Due to the nature of the "No Win No Fee" arrangements applicable to the majonty of the legal matters managed by
the Group an increase In the required processing time between imthation and settlement and an increase in the

ageing of receivables, particularly disbursements, does not always increase the associated credit nsk

Management performs penodic assessment of the recoverability of recevables, and provisions are calculated
based on histoncal wnte-offs of the receivables as well as any known circumstances relating to the matters in

progress

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of £39,159,000 at 30 June 2015 {30 June 2014 {unaudited)

£7,371,000) The credit nsk associated with cash and cash equivalents are considered as mimimal as the cash

and cash equivalents are held with reputable financial instituttons in Australia and UK
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Note 29° Financial Risk Management (continued)

1) Liguidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that an entity will encounter difficulty mn meeting obligations associated with financial liabiliies

Management of hquidity risk

The Group manages hiquidity nsk by monitoning forecast cash flows and ensunng that adequate borrowing faciitres
are mamntained Refer to the statement of cash fiows and Note 20 Cash Flow Information, for further information on
the histoncal cash flows and the current borrowing facilities below

KPls are set for practitioners relating to budgeted fee events, which are closely monitored by senior management

The Group actively reviews its funding position to ensure the available facilbies are adequate to meet its current and

anticipated needs

2015 2014
£000 £:000
Unaudited

Total banking facilitites
Bank overdrafts 3,436 -
Cash advance facility 418,849 110,871
Other sundry facibities 13,513 -
Total credit facilities 435,798 110,871
Amount utiised {350,8186) (66,474)
Unused bank faciliies 84,982 44,397

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdraft faciiies are arranged with Royal Bank of Scotland (National Westminster Bank) with the general
terms and conditions being set and agreed to annually The current facihty 1s £1,000,000 Interest rates are vanable

and subject to adjustment

Malturity analysis

The table below represents the undiscounted contractual settiement terms for financial instruments and
management's expectation for settiement of undiscounted matunties

Total
<12 contractual Carrying
Months 1-5 years  cash flows amount
2015 £000 £000 £000 £:000
Non-dernivative financial liabilities
Payables 176,015 - 176,015 176,015
Borrowings 100 307,808 307,908 307,808
Other cumrent habilities 5,352 - 5,352 5,352
Financial habiity matunties 181,467 307,808 489,275 489,275
2014 Unaudited
Non-derivative financial habiltties
Payables 72,924 2,561 75,485 75,485
Borrowings 4,230 40,442 44,672 44,672
Other current hiabilities 5,600 - - -
Financial hability matunties 82,754 43,003 120,157 120,157
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Note 29: Financial Risk Management (continued)

in) Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabiithes not measured at farr value approximates their carrying
amounts as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements

Management of fair value risk in interest rate swaps

The Group measures its interest rate swaps at fair value These fair values are based on level 2 farr value
measurements, as defined in the fair value hierarchy in IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement with reference to market
data which can be used to estimate future cash flows and discount them to present value Management's aim 1s to
use and source this data consistently from penod to penod

w) Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nsk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a resuit of
changes in market interest rates

The Group's exposure to interest rate nsks and the effective interest rates of non-denvative financial assets and
financial labilites bath recognised and unrecognised at the end of the reporting penod are as follows

Weighted
Financial average Non-interest bearng Vanable interest Fixed interest Total
Instruments rate rate
interest rate
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
£ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000

{t) Financial
Cash 005% 088% - - 39159 7,31 - - 39,1599 7.371
Trade debtors - - 108,861 29,986 - - - - 108,861 29,986
Disbursements - - 155,216 43,653 - - - - 155,216 43,653
Other receivables - - 1,599 136 - - - - 1,599 136
Total financial
assets 265,676 73,775 39,159 7,371 - - 304,835 81,146
(1) Financial
Trade creditors
and accruals - - 169,856 40,985 - - - - 169,856 40,985
Legal creditors . - 147,225 23,701 - - - - 147,225 23,701
Non-interest
bearing vendor
habilities —
acquisitions - - 6,159 5,190 - - - - 6,159 5,180
Provisions - - 10,51¢ 2,942 - - - - 10,519 2,942
Other current
habilities 445% 4 45% - - 5,352 5,600 - - 5,352 5,600
Hire purchase
liability 359% 742% - - - - 148 374 148 374
Cash advances -
fixed rate 137% 249% - - - - 25,000 25,000 25000 25,000
Cash advances —
vanable rate 199% 302% - - 282,760 19,300 - - 282,760 19,300
Total financial
habilities 333,759 72,818 288,112 24900 25,148 25374 647,019 123,092
* = ynaudited
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Note 29. Financial Risk Management {continued)

1v) Interest rate nsk (continued)

Effective average fixed Notional pringipal

Maturity of notional amounts interest rate payable value
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £'000
Unaudited Unaudited
0 to 2 years 118% 4 18% 10,000 -
2o 5 years 150% 202% 15,000 25,000
25,000 25,000

The net effective vaniable interest rate borrowings (1 e unhedged debt) expose the Group to interest rate nsk which
will impact future cash flows and interest charges and are indicated by the foliowing interest rate financial habiities

2015 2014
£000 £'000

Floating rate instruments
Unhedged cash advances/bills of exchanges 282,760 19,300
282,760 19,300

Interest rate swaps are measured at farr value with gains and losses taken to the cash flow hedge reserve until such
time as the profit or loss associated with the hedged nsk 1s recogrised i the consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income Given the matching of the hedge settlements with the payment of interest expense on the
hedged borrowings, the balance in the reserve attnbutable to interest rate swaps 1s generally minimal

Interest rate sensitivity
If interest rates were to increase/decrease by 100 basis ponts from rates used to determine fair values as at the end

of the reporting penod, assuming all other vanables that might impact en fair value remain constant, then the impact
on profit for the year and equity 15 as follows

2015 2014
£'000 £000
Unaudited

+/- 100 basis points
impact on profit after tax - .
750 788

Impact on equity

v) Foreign exchange risk

The Group 1s exposed to currency nisk on services mcome, expenses, recetvables and borrowings that are
denominated n a currency other than respective functonal currencies of the Group entities The maor functional
currency s Sterling (GBP)

In relation to recogrised assets and liabilities denominated 1n a currency other than the entity’s functronal currency,
the Group hedges all foreign currency exposures via a natural hedge

Foreign currency net investment translation nsk relating to the acquisition of Slater Gordon Solutions 1s partally
hedged through borrowings denominated in GBP, resulting in an overall reduction in the net assets that are
translated The remaining translaton exposure 1s not hedged
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 30: Fair Value Measurements
1) Fair value hierarchy

Refer to Note 2 (d) for discussion on the fair value hierarchy

30 June 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivatives destgnated as hedging instruments £000 £'000 £000 £000
Financial abiliies
Denvative financial instruments — interest rate swaps - 176 - 176
- 176 - 176
30 June 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unaudited
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments £ 000 £000 £000 £000
Financial habilities
Denvative financial instruments — interest rate swaps - 145 - 145
- 145 - 145
30 June 2015 Level 1 Leve! 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at amortised cost £'000 £000 £000 £000
Financral assets
Trade and other receivables - - 264,077 264,077
- - 264,077 264,077
Financial habilties
Trade Creditors® - - 169,856 169,856
Legal Creditors - - 147,225 147,225
Vendor Liabilites — acquisitions - - 6,159 6,159
Borrowings - 307,760 - 307,760
Finance Lease Liability i 148 - 148
- 307,908 323,240 631,148
30 June 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Unaudited
Financial assets at amortised cost £000 £'000 £000 £000
Financal assets
Trade and other receivables - - 73,639 73,639
- - 73,639 73,639
Financial habiliies
Trade Creditors* - - 40,985 40,985
Legal Creditors - - 23,701 23,701
Vendor Liabiliies — acquisitions - . 8,239 8,239
Borrowings - 44,300 - 44,300
Finance Lease Liability - 374 - 374
- 44,674 72,925 117,599

*Accrued expenses that are not financial habiities are excluded
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 30: Fair Value Measurements (continued)
)] Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 and 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the interest rate swaps 1s measured with reference to market data which can be used to estimate
future cash flows The key input into this valuation 1s the interest rate swap revaluation statement as provided by
Westpac Banking Corporation and National Australia Bank

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in a business combination 1s measured with reference to current
fee and performance forecasts which can be used to estimate future cash flows The key inputs into this valuation are
the estimated future cash flows and the average discount rate of 9 2% used to determine the present value the future

cash flows

m) Reconciliation of recurning Level 3 fair value movements

2015 2014

£000 £'000
Contingent Consideration Unaudited
Opening balance - 2,612
Acquistions - -
Payments - -
Adjustment to contingent consideration - (2,612)
Interest - -

Exchange differences
Closing balance

There has been no change In the range of undiscounted contingent consideration outcomes during the year

1v)Sensitivity analysis for recurning Level 3 fair value measurements

A reasonable movement in the unobservable inputs would not significantly impact the fair value of contingent
consideration as at the end of the reporting penod and therefore not impact profit after tax and equity

Note 31: Subsequent Events

An impairment review has been performed at 31 December 2015 by Slater & Gordon Limited, and additional
imparrment has been recorded on the SGS acquisition of £132 5m (refer to note 11) and an impairment of £4 6m has
been recorded on the goodwill associated with the Russel! Jones and Walker acquisition  These are considered to
be non-adjusting post balance sheet events
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Company’s Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2015

Note 2015 2014
£ 000 Restated
£'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 132 143
Investments 4 267,277 3,687
267,409 3,730
Current assets
Debtors due in less than one year 5 290 121
Debtors due in more than one year 5 350,454 113,201
Cash at bank and in hand 4,427 104
355,171 113,426
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 {3,540) (7,097)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 351,631 106,329
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 619,040 110,059
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 7 {375,595) (110,156)
Net Assets/(hahilities) 243,445 (97}
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 8 448 170 -
Profit and loss account 8 (204,725) (97}
Shareholders’ funds/(deficit) 9 243,445 (97)

The accompanying notes on pages 66 to 70 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 31 March 2016

They were signed on its behalf by

31 March 2016
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Parent Company’s Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1: Accounting Policies
Accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting
The financal statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention
{b) Compliance with accounting standards

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), which have been apphied consistently {(except as otherwise
stated)

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS1 (Revised 1996) from the requirement to produce a
cash flow statement on the grounds that it 1s a subsidiary undertaking where 90 per cent or more of the voting nghts

are controlled within the group
(<) Going concern

The cash flow forecast has been reviewed for the period of 12 months following the signing of the financial
statements Based on this review and the net current and total assets at the penod end, it 1s appropnate to adopt the
going cancern assumption in prepanng these accounts

(d} Turnover

Management fees are recogrised on a recewvable basis net of VAT The total tumover of the company for the penod
has been denved from its pnncipal activity wholly undertaken in the United Kingdom

{e) Goodwill

Goodwill representing the excess of the consideration for an acquired undertaking, or acquired trade and assets,
compared with the far value of net assets acquired 1s capitalised and wntten off evenly over the estimated useful ife
of 15 years

In the opinion of the directors this represents the periods aver which the goodwill 1s expected to give rnise to economic
benefits Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full inancial year following the acquisiion and in
other penods If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

(f) Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less pravision for diminution in value
(a) Pensions

The company operates a defined contnbution scheme for the benefit of its employees Contributions payable are
charged to the profit and loss account n the pencd they are payable

(h) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s provided at appropnate rates on all trming differences using the hability method Deferred tax
assets are only recognised where the likelihood of recovery s certain

() Foreign currency transiation

Monetary assets and liabilites denomnated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange
rultng at the balance sheet date Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the
transactions All differences are taken to the profit and loss account

{) Operating loss

No auditors’ remuneration has been charged to the company, the full group audit cost has been borne by Slater &
Gordon (UK) LLP
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Parent Company’s Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1 Accounting Policies {continued)

(k) Restatement

Dunng the year, the company reassessed its accounting treatment of deferred consideration payable in the context of
its acquisition of legal service practices This reassessment has taken into account an analysis of histoncal
acquisittons where cash and share-based consideration payable to the vendor prnincipals of businesses acquired 1s
deferred

Histoncally, all cash payments and share issues to vendors, whether restrained, deferred, contingent or otherwise,
have been treated as consideration for the relevant business acquisition

The company has now carefully considered the appropnate treatment of these payments by reference to the Group
policy on Business Combinations with regard to the treatment of specific components of deferred consideration
Group policy requires that transactions remunerating employees or former owners of the acquired business for future
services be treated as separate transactions that are not to be included in the acquisition

An assessment has been made in relation to those arrangements that include contingent consideration to vendors of
the busmness that are subject to so-called “bad leaver” provisions

Included n the terms of a number of purchase agreements entered into by the LLP 1s an arrangement whereby the
payment of cash consideration to and/or the retention of share-based consideration by the vendors of acquired
entities 1s contingent upon the relevant vendors remaining with the LEP for a defined penod  If a vendor ceases to
remain with the LLP for the prescnbed penod, the vendor may forfeit its entitlement to payment of the cash
consideration and/or its ability to retain its share-based consideration, at the discretion of the LLP

tn lght of our assessment, we have now corrected and restated the accounting treatment of deferred consideration
payable These arrangements will be deemed to be “separate transactions” for accounting purposes, the effect of
which s that they are treated as payments to former owners, to be expensed

30 June 2014 30 June 2014
Impact on Profit & Loss account Reported Restatements Restated
£000 £000 £000
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (782) (313) (1,096)
Profit /{Loss) for the financial penod (972) (313) (1,286)
Impact on the Balance Sheet
Creditors amounts falling due within ane year (6,784) (313) (7,098)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 106,642 (313) 106,329
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 110,372 (313) 110,059
Net Assets 216 {313) {(97)
Profit and loss account 216 (313) (97)
Shareholders’ funds 216 (313) (97)

Note 2° Parent Entity Results

As permitted by the exemption in Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its
own profit and loss account The loss for the year was £204 6million {restated 2014 £1 28miflion) There were no
recognised gains and losses other than those recognised in the profit and loss account

The auditor’s remuneration for audit services to the Company 1s bome by the Group
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Parent Company’s Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 3. Intangible Fixed Assets

2015 2014
£°000 £000
Cost
At 1 July 167 167
Amortisation
At 1 July 24 13
Charge for the year 1" 1
At 30 June 35 24
Net Book Value 132 143
Note 4: Investments
Unhsted Unlisted
Investment Investment
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 3,587 3,587
Acquisition dunng the penod 468,141 -
impairment (204,451) -
Cost at 30 June 267,277 3,587

The above acquisition relates to the Slater Gordon Sofutions group of companies that were acquired fram Quindell plc

Holdings of more than 20%

The company holds more than 20% of the capital of the following businesses

Shares held
Business name Country of incorporation Class %
New Claims Direct Limited England and Wales Ordinary 1000
4 Legal Solutions Limited England and Wales Ordinary 1000

The company has a beneficial interest in the profits of Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP The profit share i1s recogrised when the
Company has an uncondiional nght to payment

The prancipal achvity of these undertakings for the last financial year was as follows

Business name Principal activity

Slater & Gordon {UK) LLP Provision of consumer and business legal advice

New Claims Direct Limited Holding company for nghts and trademarks to the name "Ctaims Direct’
4 Legal Solutions Limited The proviston of medico-legal reports
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Parent Company’s Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 5: Debtors

2015 2014
£'000 £:000
Other debtors 127 89
Prepayments and accrued income 163 32
Due in less than one year 290 121
Due in greater than one year
350,454 113,201

Amounts due from group companies

The amounts due from Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP are repayable under terms which match the bank loans and Parent
Company loan This means that the total loan i1s repayable after more than five years All interest charged on these
ioans are recharged to Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP During the year £ 4,920,995 (2014 - £4,137,244) of interest was

recharged to Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP

Note 6° Creditors' amounts faliing due within one year

2014
2015 Restated
£000 £000
Trade Creditors 222 -
Corporation tax 970 799
Other taxation and social secunty costs 1,299 1,022
Other creditors 1,049 204
Accruals and deferred income - 1,072
Bank loans at average rate of 2 27% (2014 1 7% above the LIBOR interest rate) - 4,000
3,540 7,097
Note 7. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2014
2015 Restated
£000 £'000
Bank loans at average rate of 2 27% (2014 1 7% above the LIBOR interest rate) 307,760 40,300
Loan from Parent Company (in AUD and GBP) (2014 2 15% above Australian Bank Base)
repayable by Apnl 2022 - 65,702
Amounts due to companies 67,835 4,154
375,595 110,156
The bank loan of £307,760,305 15 part of the Slater & Gordon Group loan facility
2015 2014
The company’s borrowings are repayable as follows £000 £'000
On demand or within one year - 4,000
Between one and two years - 24,000
Between two and five years 307,760 16,300
- 65,702

After five years

The bank loans are also part of a syndicated facility provided to Slater & Gordon Limited by Westpac Banking

Corporation and National Australia Bank The facility 1s secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets and
uncalled capital of Slater & Gordon Limited, Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP and Slater & Gordon (UK) 1 Limited

The company has entered nto an interest rate swap to reduce the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates
on the loans borrowed from the parent company’s banks The fair value of the swap arrangement at the balance

sheet date was £176,382 (2014 - £144,699)
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Note 7: Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year {continued)

The amounts due from Slater & Gordon {UK) LLP are repayable under terms which match the bank loans and Parent
Company loan This means that the total loan 1s repayable after more than five years All interest charged on these
loans are recharged to Slater & Gordon (UK) LLP Dunng the year £ 4,919,995 (2014 - £4,137,244) of interest was
recharged to Stater & Gordon (UK} LLP

Note 8: Share Capital & statement of movement in reserves

2015 2014
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
448,170,021 Ordinary shares of £1 448,170,021 1
2014
2015 Restated
Movement In reserves £'000 £°000
Balance at 1 July 2014 (97) 1,189
Loss for the penaod (204,628) (1,286)
Batance at 30 June 2015 (204,725) (97)
Note 9: Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
2014
2015 Restated
£'000 £'000
Opening shareholders’ funds (97) 1,189
l.oss for the penod (204,628) (1,286)
Shares 1ssued 448,170 -
Balance at 30 June 2015 243,445 (97)

Note 10: Contingent Liabihties

The Company Is a part of a group VAT election and 1s therefore jointly and severally liable for the VAT lhability of other
group entities The group liability at 30 June 2015 was £5,965,602 (30 June 2014 - £4,467,766)

The Company Is party fo a £420,000,000 syndicated faciity agreement dated 29 May 2015 pursuant to which its
ulimate parent company, Slater and Gordon Limited, 1s a borrower (the "Facility Agreement”) Pursuant to the terms
of the Facility Agreement, the Company has given a cross-guarantee {along with other Group Companies) in relation
to all habiliies outstanding under the Facility Agreement in favour of the Finance Parties {(as defined under the Facility
Agreement) The Company 1s also party lo a debenture dated 29 May 2015 (the "Debenture™) pursuant to which the
Company {together with other Group Companies) covenants with Westpac Banking Assocratton (acting as Secunty
Trustee for itse!f and the Secured Parties (as defined in the Debenture)) that it will on demand pay all iabiihes
outstanding under the Facility Agreement (and associated finance documents) when they are due and payable and
grants secunty over all of its assets n favour of Westpac Banking Association (acting as Secunty Trustee for itself
and the Secured Parties)

Note 11. Related party transactions

The company s taking advantage of the exemption granted under Financial Reporting Standard No 8, "Related
Party Transactions™, not to disclose transacbions with wholly owned group compantes, which are related parties
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